
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


November 13, 2014
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on November 13, 2014 at 7:00 p.m.
in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Chief Deputy Clerk 
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order 


Chairman Brown called the November 13, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:04 p.m.


Invocation by Commissioner Ognio


Commissioner Ognio introduced Minister of Worship Jeff Durham of Lisbon Baptist Church, and he asked Minister
Durham to offer the Invocation.  Minister Durham offered the Invocation.


Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Introduction of Commissioner-elect Pota Coston: Commissioner McCarty congratulated and introduced
Commissioner-elect Pota Coston who will represent the 5th District of Fayette County.  He stated that she would be
the new Commissioner for the 5th District of Fayette County, and he stated that she would do a good job for Fayette
County.


Acceptance of Agenda


Commissioner McCarty moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.



fjones

Typewritten Text



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #14







Minutes
November 13, 2014
Page Number 2


PROCLAMATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of J.C. Booth Middle School as the "Scarecrow Grand Master," and the Town of Tyrone,
and the Fayette County Sheriff's Office for placing first, second, and third place, respectively, in
Fayette County's Inaugural Scarecrow Contest.


Chairman Brown and a few members of the Fayette County Public Arts Committee presented prizes to
those organizations who participated in the recent scarecrow competition.  The Fayette County Sheriff’s
Office, who came in third place, received a gift certificate to Twisted Taco.  The Town of Tyrone, who came
in second place, received a gift certificate to Broadway Diner.  J.C. Booth Middle School’s Art Department
was the first place winner and received an award of $150.00 and the title “2014 Scarecrow Grand Master.” 
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1,” follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.  


2. Recognition and presentation of three newly promoted Fire and Emergency Services officers to the
rank of Lieutenant.


Mr. Jason Crenshaw, Mr. Michael Hadden, and Mr. Ronald Redman were promoted to the rank of
Lieutenant and sworn into office by Superior Court Judge W. Fletcher Sams.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 2,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Recognition of Matt Bergen, Construction Inspector with Fayette County's Water System, who has
been named Region Three Vice-Chairman of the year by the Georgia Utilities Coordinating Council.


Water System Director Lee Pope recognized Mr. Matt Bergen who was named the Region Three Vice-
Chairman of the year by the Georgia Utilities Coordinating Council.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 3,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Proclamation honoring William and Gertrude Dreisbach who are celebrating their 50th wedding
anniversary.


Commissioner Oddo read the proclamation honoring William and Gertrude Dreisback who will celebrate
their 50th anniversary on November 28, 2014.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4,” follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING:


5. Public Hearing on a request to approve a 2015 Alcohol License for retail sales of malt beverages
and wine from Ram Nawas, doing business as Chevron Food Mart, which is located at 1488 Highway
92 North, Fayetteville, Georgia 30214, to Highway 92 Chevron with an equal partnership between
Tushar Patel and Yijayh Pakikh, and to transfer as the licensee Mr. Tushar Patel.


Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs briefed the Board on this request and informed the Commissioners
that all the requirements were met.


No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.







Minutes
November 13, 2014
Page Number 3


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve a 2015 Alcohol License for retail sales of malt beverages and wine
from Ram Nawas, doing business as Chevron Food Mart, which is located at 1488 Highway 92 North,
Fayetteville, Georgia 30214, to Highway 92 Chevron with an equal partnership between Tushar Patel and
Yijayh Pakikh, and to transfer as the licensee Mr. Tushar Patel.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 5,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


6. Public Hearing on a request to approve the renewal the 2015 Alcohol License and transfer of a 2014
Alcohol License for the retail sales of malt beverages and wine at 1552 Highway 85 South,
Fayetteville, Georgia 30214, from Green Oil, doing business as South Fayette Chevron, to Pari USA,
LLC., doing business as South Fayette Chevron, and licensee is Mr. Paresh Patel.


Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs briefed the Board on this request and informed the Commissioners
that all the requirements had been met.  She added that the license under consideration for transfer was in
good standing.


No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the renewal the 2015 Alcohol License and transfer of a 2014
Alcohol License for the retail sales of malt beverages and wine at 1552 Highway 85 South, Fayetteville,
Georgia 30214, from Green Oil, doing business as South Fayette Chevron, to Pari USA, LLC., doing
business as South Fayette Chevron, and licensee is Mr. Paresh Patel.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 6,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Barlow moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 7 through 9.  Commissioners Ognio and McCarty
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


7. Approval of staff's recommendation to approve the "Right-of-Way Mowing and Maintenance
Agreement," between the Georgia Department of Transportation and Fayette County, Georgia, in
order to perform certain services relating to mowing and maintenance within the Georgia
Department of Transportation's right of way.  Copies of the request and maintenance agreement,
identified as “Attachment 7,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


8. Consideration of staff's recommendation to award the Chemical System and Actuator Improvements
Project (Bid #913) to the low bidder, AllSouth Constructors, Inc. for the not to exceed amount of
$2,059,730; and to award CH2M Hill for design and project construction management in the amount
of $258,900.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8,” follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.


9. Approval of the October 23, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


There was no item of Old Business for consideration.







Minutes
November 13, 2014
Page Number 4


NEW BUSINESS:


10. Consideration of staff's recommendation to enter into a contract with The Carl Vinson Institute of
Government at the University of Georgia to conduct a classification and compensation study,
beginning January 21, 2015 with a preliminary cost estimate and report submitted for review in May
2015, and a final report submitted in June 2015, at a cost of $26,250.00.


Mr. Alex Daman, Public Service Assistant with the Carl Vinson Institute of Government, gave a PowerPoint
presentation and spoke to the Board about staff’s recommendation to enter into a contract with The Carl
Vinson Institute of Government for the conduction of a classification and compensation study.  Mr. Daman
and County Administrator Steve Rapson answered several questions and addressed concerns expressed
by the Commissioners.  This discussion lasted more than one hour.


Mr. Daman made the following points about the classification and compensation study project:


a) The project would upgrade the current classification system and pay plan for all County employees.  It
would provide an updated description of each job in the County and project a classification system based
on job content.  The project would collect wage survey data and produce a recommended pay plan based
on job analysis, job evaluation, and wage survey data. The project would provide technical assistance in
implementing the study’s recommendations.


b) The project would not recommend across-the-board salary increases for county employees, and it would
not assess and determine appropriate staffing levels for Fayette County.  The project would not review and
assess the performance of individual employees of Fayette County.


Mr. Daman, utilizing his PowerPoint presentation, then described the various steps to the project and how
they would be completed.


Commissioner Barlow stated that the project would last about eight months, and he asked if there would be
monthly or periodic updates on the progress of the project.  County Administrator Steve Rapson replied that
there would be updates provided as the project progressed.  


Mr. Rapson then stated that this project was recommended in order to ensure the County is on track with
the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget in order to incorporate the budget dollars into the budget.  He said the County
would look at the budget comprehensively, and that the County would know the potential impact to the
budget for Fiscal Year 2016.  Mr. Rapson stated that this pay and classification study that the County is
currently operating with was conducted in 2007, and he stated that best practices dictate that pay and
classification studies need to be updated every five to seven years, meaning the county is outside of the
time span needed to reevaluate its current compensation plan.  Mr. Rapson also pointed out that due to the
depressed economy there has not been a lot of salary increases for county employees.  Mr. Rapson added
that the county would compare itself with Henry, Spalding, Coweta Counties as well as the cities of Tyrone,
Fayetteville, Newnan, and Griffin.  He stated that the County would not compare itself with the Peachtree
City study.  Mr. Rapson emphasized that the recommendation was not to completely revise the 2007
Compensation and Classification Study but rather to walk that study up to current day.  He stated that the
county has had a working relationship with The Carl Vinson Institute of Government in the past, and he 







Minutes
November 13, 2014
Page Number 5


provided examples of how the county has worked with the institute in the past.  Mr. Rapson stated that he
was not anticipating huge revisions of the pay scale, and that he did not anticipate a major impact to the
budget.  


Commissioner Ognio stated that he did not quite agree with the study.  He stated that Fayette County has
the best employees in the state, but that some people are happy with where they are at.  He suggested that
this study, however, would provide an automatic increase for low-scaled employees without requiring
additional productivity.  He stated that he liked to increase pay based on merit.  Commissioner Ognio also
questioned how employees in a small county compare to another employee with a larger county who has
the same job description.  He also suggested that the pay scale created an ever-increasing cycle where
one jurisdiction raises their pay scale based on others who then feel compelled to raise their pay scale. 
Commissioner Ognio stated that the pay scale needed to be corrected internally without the assistance of
The Carl Vinson Institute of Government.  Mr. Daman replied that involving a third party would provide an
objective study, and he stated that the study would provide apples-to-apples salary data comparisons. 
Commissioner Ognio asked why would there need to be a study if there is no employee retainment
problem, and Mr. Daman answered explained why he thought there was such a need.


Commissioner Oddo said he understood Commissioner Ognio’s point of view, but given the scope,
complexities, and number of employees in the County, he was inclined to support the recommended study. 
He stated that this effort was a major undertaking, and he wanted everyone in the county to know why the
county was doing what it was doing.


Chairman Brown stated that he looked at Mr. Daman’s recent clients, and he noticed that there are not
many clients using The Carl Vinson Institute of Government.  Chairman Brown then asked Mr. Daman why
the metropolitan Atlanta jurisdictions were not using The Carl Vinson Institute of Government.  Mr. Daman
stated that it was difficult to say why, but he added that the bulk of his work in the metropolitan area
involved studies for higher education institutes.  He reiterated that The Carl Vinson Institute of Government
has worked with Fayette County since 2007.  


Chairman Brown stated that the proposal was for Constitutional Officers and Department Directors would
be responsible for reviewing and critiquing existing job descriptions, and he asked if there was a method or
protocol for that effort.  Mr. Daman replied that there were protocols and he briefly explained what the
protocols and methodologies were.  Chairman Brown asked, if the reviewed jobs have evolved, would The
Carl Vinson Institute of Government recommend a new job classification.  Mr. Daman replied that the
recommendation would depend on how the job has evolved.  


Chairman Brown asked Mr. Daman if his study would incorporate a broad approach to the data material or
if the study would be specific to the cities and counties previously mentioned.  Mr. Daman replied that the
Department of Community Affairs information, from which he would draw some of his study, would specify
the comparable cities and counties.  He stated that the study from the Bureau of Labor Statistics Salary
Survey for the Atlanta, Georgia Metropolitan Area and other studies would be similar.  Chairman Brown
asked if the Bureau of Labor Statistics study and other studies would include other metropolitan counties
such as Fulton, DeKalb, Gwinnett and Cobb Counties.  Mr. Daman replied that it would.  Chairman Brown
replied that was what he was trying to avoid since they represented vastly different markets with over-the-
top compensation.  Chairman Brown also expressed concern with factoring private sector jobs into the pay
study, as indicated by Mr. Daman.







Minutes
November 13, 2014
Page Number 6


Chairman Brown pointed out that Mr. Daman had used the phrase “predicable salary increases,” and he
asked Mr. Daman what he meant by that phrase.  Mr. Daman replied that the employees would be put on a
step system, and that as an employee moves from step to step, then the employee would achieve
predicable salary increases.  Mr. Rapson gave an explanation of the step system and how it is
implemented.


Chairman Brown clarified that Mr. Daman was not recommending the pay-band compensation structure,
and Mr. Daman replied that the pay-band structure was provided only to show that other pay scales are
available.  Chairman Brown asked if The Carl Vinson Institute of Government ever recommends the pay-
band compensation structure, and Mr. Daman replied that it did recommend the pay-band when warranted.


Chairman Brown asked if The Carl Vinson Institute of Government ever mixed its recommendations to lead,
match, or lag with regard to positions and compensation.  Mr. Daman replied that the Carl Vinson Institute
of Government does not provide recommendations in that matter, but that it provides information, including
pros and cons on leading, matching, or lagging in these areas.


Commissioner Ognio asked how many studies have been conducted that did not result in pay increases. 
Mr. Daman replied that the answer could be tricky, but that there have been studies where the department
was found to be competitive although there were internal adjustments that had to be made.  Commissioner
Ognio asked if there is ever a recommendation to lower the scale, and Mr. Daman replied that it would be
the County’s decision to embrace a lag scale.  


Chairman Brown stated that he did not like a system that weighs Fayette County against extremely
populous counties with larger budgets.  He said it worried him.  He mentioned that the county would never
compete with private wages in Information Technology, so it has to compensate through other ways.  He
said he was very nervous to make the reference point for the study to private citizens.  Mr. Rapson stated
that the study was limited to the counties and cities on the south side of metropolitan Atlanta, and he
reiterated that the study would be narrowly defined.


Commissioner McCarty asked why this study could not be made internally without hiring an outside source. 
Mr. Rapson replied that there are more than three hundred classifications with about twelve funds.  He
stated that this study would be a comprehensive analysis.    


Chairman Brown asked what were the significant differences between what was done in 2007 and what
was being currently recommended.  Mr. Daman replied that in 2007 the County enacted a comprehensive
plan that included surveys and interviews with half of the county’s workforce.  He stated that the goal in
2007 was to start a new compensation and classification study from scratch.  Mr. Daman continued saying
the goal of this recommendation was to update the existing plan.


Commissioner Ognio stated that other counties may not have balanced budgets, and he asked why Fayette
County would look at other counties that do not have balanced budgets.  Mr. Daman replied that public
sector is compared to other public sector work since public sector jobs are unique to local governments.  


Mr. Rapson stated that the County is not currently having retention problems and that means this is the
best time to have this type of study.  He stated this recommendation was a best practice solution and that it
was best not to have a compensation and classification study when there are retention problems.







Minutes
November 13, 2014
Page Number 7


Commissioner Barlow moved to enter into a contract with The Carl Vinson Institute of Government at the
University of Georgia to conduct a classification and compensation study, beginning January 21, 2015 with
a preliminary cost estimate and report submitted for review in May 2015, and a final report submitted in
June 2015, at a cost of $26,250.00.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.  


Frank Gardner: Mr. Gardner spoke in opposition to this recommendation.  He stated that it would be
common sense to continue with the 2007 compensation and classification study.  He recommended that
the Board not change the 2007 compensation and classification study since it could impact the county’s
budget.


Chairman Brown stated that he has worked interesting jobs in the private sector and he spoke about some
of his jobs and responsibilities.  He said his first two years in office caused him to contribute little since he
was outvoted.  So, he kept notes for two years, and he observed that there were structural problems in
management, that there was low productivity in some areas, there was constricted work flow, there was a
lack of system wide and departmental goals, and there were a deficit budgeting and a substantial
underutilization of technology compared to other jurisdictions.  He stated that communications both inside
and outside the county was subpar, and budget decisions were irrational.  He stated that he saw a great
deal of cronyism and elected officials.  Chairman Brown stated that over the past two years, he has seen
most of the managerial obstacles eradicated, and many of the problems have been addressed.  He stated
that cronyism is extent and that productivity has increased dramatically.  He said he was proud of the
creation of a better work environment.  He said some employees have been promoted and spot
compensation adjustments.  He stated that the county has given incentive pay increases and in so doing
awarding the employees.  He said there are a lot of good things to be proud of.  He said there is more
professionalism in the institution.  That said, Chairman Brown stated that he wanted to see issues resolved
before the County approves a pay study.  He stated that sometimes bugs have to be worked out.  He added
that pay studies need to be reasonable both for the taxpayers as well as for the employees.  Chairman
Brown stated there needs to be firm procedures on pay incentives in the future.  Chairman Brown stated
that he still does not have a Policy and Procedures Manual for the County, but that it was remarkable to him
that there is not a complete policy and procedures manual for the county.  


Commissioner Barlow stated that the County Administrator Steve Rapson was the person who was to be
credited for the good things in the county, and he spoke about the staff that has been empowered by Mr.
Rapson.


Commissioner Oddo said he shared many of the concerns Chairman Brown outlined, but he thought that
the County needed to make sure it was doing what it should be doing.  He thought Fayette County should
be compared to the proper counties, and that he was inclined to support the pay study.  


Commissioner McCarty stated that other counties need to use Fayette County as a reference, not the other
way around.  He added that if a practice is not broken, then there is no need to fix it.


The motion to enter into a contract with The Carl Vinson Institute of Government at the University of
Georgia to conduct a classification and compensation study, beginning January 21, 2015 with a preliminary
cost estimate and report submitted for review in May 2015, and a final report submitted in June 2015, at a
cost of $26,250.00 failed 2-3 with Chairman Brown, Commissioner Ognio, and Commissioner McCarty
voting in opposition.  Copies of the request and the PowerPoint presentation, identified as “Attachment 10,”
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.







Minutes
November 13, 2014
Page Number 8


11. Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-18- Roads and Bridges, and in so
doing deleting Article II pertaining to "Street Lighting,” from Chapter 20, in its entirety, and by
replacing it with a new Article II in Chapter 20 entitled "Article II. Street Lighting."


Engineering Technician Deborah Sims briefed the Board regarding staff’s recommendation to adopt
Ordinance 2014-18.  Ms. Sims stated that this matter was spoken at the Board of Commissioner’s Retreat
Meeting earlier in the year, and based on that discussion the ordinance has been amended.  She explained
that, upon passage of the Street Light Ordinance, if someone wants to start a street light district that person
would have to pay two years ahead.  She stated that this change would ensure the program is self-
sustaining without the need for money being lent out from the county’s general fund.  Ms. Sims also briefly
explained some of the other changes and answered questions from the Board.


Commissioner Oddo moved to adopt Ordinance 2014-18- Roads and Bridges, and in so doing deleting
Article II pertaining to "Street Lighting,” from Chapter 20, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new Article
II in Chapter 20 entitled "Article II. Street Lighting."  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-1 with Commissioner McCarty voting in opposition.  Copies of
the request and Ordinance 2014-18, identified as “Attachment 11,” follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Frank Gardner: Mr. Gardner spoke about a grant related to the Fayette County Board of Education, and he said the
grant could be withdrawn if it was awarded to the Fayette County Board of Commissioners.  He thought that was a
“slap in the face” for the County Commissioners where someone on the Board of Education said they would
withdraw their request for a grant if it went through Fayette County.  He thought that if the grant would do something
for the county, then perhaps the county should look into obtaining that grant.


Tom Waller: Mr. Waller expressed his heartfelt appreciation to Commissioner Allen McCarty.  He said
Commissioner McCarty did a good job and he hoped his successor would also do a good job.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Planning and Zoning Commission: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that there was one position
available on the Planning and Zoning Commission, and he asked for a Selection Committee to be formed to
interview applicants to the position.  Chairman Brown and Commissioner Barlow were appointed to the Selection
Committee.


Zoning Board of Appeals: County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board that one position was available
on the Zoning Board of Appeals, and he asked for a Selection Committee to be formed to interview applicants for the
position.  Chairman Brown and Commissioner Oddo were appointed to the Selection Committee.


Recreation Commission: County Administrator Steve Rapson told the Board that one position was available on the
Recreation Commission, but that the appointment was tied to Post 3, meaning Chairman Brown would need to
recommend the appointment.  Chairman Brown and Commissioner Ognio were appointed to the Selection
Committee.  Mr. Rapson reiterated that this appointment was tied to a post so the recommendation would come from
Chairman Brown.







Minutes
November 13, 2014
Page Number 9


Ethics Board: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that the Board would need to advance an alternate
member appointed to the Fayette County Ethics Board to a permanent position once Commissioner-elect Pota
Coston, who is appointed to the Fayette County Ethics Board, is removed from the position upon being sworn in as a
County Commissioner.  Chairman Brown and Commissioner Barlow were appointed to the Selection Committee for
this appointment.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Notification of Executive Session: County Attorney Dennis Davenport notified the Board that he had one item of
Executive Session pertaining to Pending Litigation.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Barlow: Verbatim as requested: The verbatim comments begin at 9:13:39 p.m. of the audio


recording.


Barlow:  I do have something that Tuesday was Veteran’s Day, and I’m just curious, we of course had the room
clear out.  I know that Steve Rapson, our fantastic manager, is a veteran.  Do we have any other veterans in the
room?  Okay, thank you.  I would like to thank you for your service. (Clapping.)


Rapson: And for purposes of that, it includes people who aren’t in the Marine Corps. 


Barlow: Yeah . . . 


Brown: Lord, have mercy.


Barlow: Well I wanted to thank our veterans for not being selfish with their lives and believing in our nation’s
freedom.  Many have served and are serving.  Freedom has a taste to those who have fought and almost died that
the protected never know.  All gave some and some gave all.  But there is One who gave His only Son, Jesus Christ,
that whoever believeth in Him should not perish but have everlasting life.  Jesus died that all of us can choose
eternal life.  And I believe that we are all created in the image of God and therefore we have value regardless of
race, religion, or gender.  The ultimate measure of a man is not when he stands in moments of comfort or
convenience, but where he stands at times of challenge and controversy.  Martin Luther King said that.  We
conservative Christians have been unmercifully attacked by the liberal demoncrats and the liberal press throughout
Obama’s presidency.  November fourth changed all that.  I will work tirelessly to see that in 2016 the GOP regains
the presidency, thereby nullifying the evil that has been proliferating through our great nation.  I declare this in the
mighty name of Jesus.  I would also like to congratulate Ms. Pota Coston on becoming the new Commissioner for
District Five.  I’ve known Pota for four years.  We first met in Tyrone across the street from one another.  She was
campaigning for herself and I was campaigning for then candidate Eric Dial who became mayor of Tyrone.  Pota and
I would be on the street every morning hold signs, and so naturally we began to speak to one another.  We even
prayed together for God’s will to be done.  Even though I disagree with how she won, I look forward to working with
her.  And this is a comment from Terry Garlock that wraps up the thoughts about this district voting: “Furthermore,
the whole racist district voting project had the underhanded goal of getting Democrats selected in a heavily
Republican County.  If I move to a heavily Democrat County, would I have any right to change the voting system and
gerrymander a racial district trying to ensure a Republican result.  Of course not.  So pardon me if I don’t buy the
happy-happy-happy view on recent changes in Fayette that stole 4/5th of every voter’s county votes.”  That’s by
Terry Garlock.  That’s all I have Mr. Chairman.  (sic)







Minutes
November 13, 2014
Page Number 10


The verbatim comments end at 9:16:29 of the audio recording.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo congratulated those who ran their races and won their races.  He also
thanked Commissioner McCarty for his work on the Fayette County Board of Commission.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio thanked Commissioner McCarty for his service on the Fayette County
Board of Commissioners and he congratulated Commissioner-elect Coston for her recent electoral victory. 
Commissioner Ognio also reminded everyone that Thanksgiving Day was coming up and he wished everyone a safe
and happy holiday.


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty asked everyone to have a safe and happy Thanksgiving Day, and
he asked everyone to remember why they were giving thanks.  He stated that the people live in a wonderful county
in a wonderful country.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown thanked the veterans for their service and congratulated Commissioner-elect
Pota Coston on her recent victory saying he looked forward to working with her.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Pending Litigation: Commissioner Oddo moved to recess into Executive Session to discuss Pending Litigation. 
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 9:18 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 9:26 p.m.


Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved to authorize the Chairman to sign an Executive Session
stating one item of Pending Litigation was discussed in Executive Session.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
12,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Settlement Agreement for Mr. Myron Hayes:  Chairman Brown moved to approve a settlement in the amount of
$190,000.00 for Mr. Myron Hayes, who was injured in August 2012 and was unable to return to work as a firefighter,
with this settlement being approved by the State Board of Worker’s Compensation on October 30, 2014. 
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.







Minutes
November 13, 2014
Page Number 11


ADJOURNMENT:


Chairman Brown moved to adjourn the November 13, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting.  Commissioners
Barlow and McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The November 13, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 9:27 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                  Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 11th day of December 2014.


___________________________________
       Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
















AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners
December 11, 2014


 4:00 P.M.


Call to Order 
Invocation by Commissioner McCarty
Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PROCLAMATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of Commissioner Allen McCarty for his years of service on the
Fayette County Board of Commissioners.


2. Shop Fayette County for the Holidays.


3. Recognition and rewarding of the County Department who won Fayette
County’s Annual Door Decorating Contest.


PUBLIC HEARING:


4. Public Hearing on staff's request to approve a transfer of license for
Sequoia Golf Whitewater, LLC. from Mr. Joseph I. Guerra to Mr. Stephen
Soriano for on-premises malt beverage, wine, and distilled spirit sales.


5. Public Hearing on Petition No. 1238-14, Sohel Dhanani, Owner, request to
rezone 34.277 acres from A-R to R-40 to develop a Single-Family
Residential Subdivision consisting of 19 lots, with said property being
located in Land Lots 222 and 227 of the 13th District and fronting on
Westbridge Road.  The Applicant has requested to withdraw Petition 1238-
14.


6. Public Hearing of Petition No. 1240-14, Davis, LLC., Owner, and Rick
Halbert, Agent, request to rezone 63.89 aces from A-R and R-40 to A-R to
develop Single-Family Residential, with said property being located in Land
Lots 5 and 6 of the 7th District and fronting on Davis Road.


7. Public Hearing on proposed Ordinance 2014-19, amending the Fayette
County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, regarding
Greenhouses in Section 110-3. Definitions, Section 110-79. Accessory
Structures And Uses, Section 110-125. A-R Agricultural-Residential District,
and Section 110-169 Conditional Use Approval.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
December 11, 2014
Page Number 2


CONSENT AGENDA:


8. Approval of Chairman Brown’s recommendation to declare Friday, December 26, 2014 as an additional
paid holiday for Fayette County’s employees.


9. Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into a contract with The Carl Vinson Institute of Government at
the University of Georgia to conduct a classification and compensation study of the Information Technology
Department and up to six positions, beginning January 21, 2015, with a cost estimate submitted for review
in May 2015 and a final report submitted in June 2015 at a cost of $3,500.


10. Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-20 amending the Code of Ordinances for
Fayette County, Georgia, by deleting the last sentence of Section 8-230, pertaining to "Disposal of Articles,"
of Division 2 of Article VI of Chapter 8, in its entirety, and replacing it with a new last sentence in Section
8-230 of Division 2 of Article VI of Chapter 8.


11. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award a contract to New South Construction Company, Inc., to serve
as General Contractor for the old jail’s renovation (RFP #915), in the amount of $159,540.00 for General
Conditions, and to authorize staff to negotiate remaining costs with the General Contractor to arrive at the
total Guaranteed Maximum Price.


12. Approval of two Intergovernmental Agreements with Clayton County to perform maintenance and repairs on
the McDonough Road bridge and Helmer Road bridge, both being at the Fayette / Clayton County line, at
an aggregate cost of $173,558.55, with $11,305.55 utilized from contingency funds, and for all project funds
to be moved to the Road Department’s Maintenance and Operations budget.


13. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into an agreement with the Fayette County Board of Education
for the stockpiling and use of structural fill.


14. Approval of the disposition of tax refunds, in an aggregate amount of $486.09, as recommended by the Tax
Assessor’s Office.


15. Approval of the County Clerk's request to adopt the 2015 County Commission Meeting Schedule.


16. Approval of the November 13, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:


17. Consideration of the reappointment of Marie Washburn as the City of Peachtree City's representative on the
Fayette County Library Board for a four-year term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December
31, 2018.







Agenda
December 11, 2014
Page Number 3


18. Consideration of the reappointment of Lisa Richardson as the Town of Tyrone's representative on the
Fayette County Library Board for a four-year term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December
31, 2018.


19. Consideration of the reappointment of Kim Bradley as the Town of Brooks' representative on the Fayette
County Library Board for a four-year term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December 31,
2018.


20. Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Mr. Darryl Paul to the Fayette
County Ethics Board for a three-year term beginning November 8, 2014 and expiring November 7, 2017.


21. Consideration of Commissioner Ognio's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2014-19 requesting the
Fayette County Legislative Delegation to consider offering changes to the statue governing the use of
fluoride in drinking water.


22. Consideration of Commissioner McCarty's recommendation to prominently display the national motto, "In
God We Trust," in the Board of Commissioners Public Meeting Room.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 



Department: Presenter(s):



Background/History/Details:



Wording for the Agenda:



What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?



If this item requires funding, please describe:



Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?



Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*



Administrator's Approval



Backup Provided with Request?



Approved by Finance



Approved by Purchasing



Reviewed  by Legal



County Clerk's Approval



Type of Request:



Staff Notes:



Meeting Date:



*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  



  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.



Commissioners Steve Brown



Shop Fayette County for the Holidays



Proclamation to encourage citizens to shop Fayette County shops during the holidays to promote economic prosperity and to keep 



Fayette tax dollars in Fayette County.



Shop Fayette County for the Holidays.



Not Applicable.



Not Applicable



Not Applicable Yes



Presentation/RecognitionThursday, December 11, 2014











 
FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 



 
               



SHOP FAYETTE COUNTY FOR THE HOLIDAYS 
               



 
A PROCLAMATION 



 
 



WHEREAS,  Fayette County offers a wide variety of retail shopping opportunities; and  



WHEREAS, Local sales taxes on goods purchased in Fayette County are distributed to the county 



and municipal governments to pay for services such as public infrastructure, recreation 



and public safety; and 



WHEREAS, Purchasing Christmas gifts and other goods outside of Fayette County means you are 



helping to pay for someone else’s government services; and 



WHEREAS, You really can make all your essential and extravagant gift purchases right here in 



Fayette County, from stylish clothing and high tech gadgets to furniture and toys;  



NOW, THEREFORE, WE, THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS DO HEREBY 
PROCLAIM the months of December and January as the season of  
 



“SHOP FAYETTE COUNTY FOR THE HOLIDAYS,” 
 



and we encourage all our citizens to buy local and put your sales taxes to work in your community 
for your benefit. 
 
 



So proclaimed this 11th day of December 2014 



       



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 



 



          



             



                 STEVE BROWN, Chairman     








			Commissioners- Shop Fayette Agenda Request File


			Proclamation- Shop Fayette County for the Holidays










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 



Department: Presenter(s):



Background/History/Details:



Wording for the Agenda:



What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?



If this item requires funding, please describe:



Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?



Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*



Administrator's Approval



Backup Provided with Request?



Approved by Finance



Approved by Purchasing



Reviewed  by Legal



County Clerk's Approval



Type of Request:



Staff Notes:



Meeting Date:



*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  



  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.



Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson



Recognition and rewarding of the County Department who won Fayette County's Annual Door Decorating Contest.



Each of Fayette County's Departments participated in a door decoration contest in honor of the Christmas holiday season. 



 



The doors were judged by State Court Judge Jason Thompson, Deputy Tax Commissioner Kristie King and Fayette County Chairman 



Steve Brown in order to determine which door should win the contest. 



 



The winning departments are Fayette County Public Works Department, Tax Commissioner and the Fayette County Water System.  



Each winning department will be present at the Board of Commissioners meeting to receive a trophy for their success.



Recognition and rewarding of the County Department who won Fayette County's Annual Door Decorating Contest.



Not Applicable.



No



No No



Not Applicable



Not Applicable Yes



This event brings the County Departments together in friendly competition in an effort to celebrate the Christmas and New Year's 



holidays.



Presentation/RecognitionThursday, December 11, 2014















COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Consent Agenda #8


Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-20 amending the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia, by 


deleting the last sentence of Section 8-230, pertaining to "Disposal of Articles," of Division 2 of Article VI of Chapter 8, in its entirety,and 


replacing it with a new last sentence in Section 8-230 of Division 2 of Article VI of Chapter 8.


State law requires a thirty day hold be placed on items from the seller or pledger.  This effort is to bring the county's ordinance into 


compliance with state law. 


 


This recommended change will delete the last sentence of Section 8-230, pertaining to "Disposal of Articles," of Division 2 of Article VI of 


Chapter 8, in its entirety,and by replacing it with a new last sentence in Section 8-230 of Division 2 of Article VI of Chapter 8, to be read 


as follows: 


 


"Non-pledged goods bought under this section shall be held for at least thirty 930) calendar days before disposing them by sale, transfer, 


shipment or otherwise." 


 


A red-line version of the changes is provided in the backup (Exhibit A) and a final form of the ordinance is provided (Exhibit B).


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-20 amending the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia, by 


deleting the last sentence of Section 8-230, pertaining to "Disposal of Articles," of Division 2 of Article VI of Chapter 8, in its entirety,and 


replacing it with a new last sentence in Section 8-230 of Division 2 of Article VI of Chapter 8.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, December 11, 2014 Consent







Sec. 8-230. Disposal of articles. 


 


 Any pawnbroker or employee of a pawnshop who makes a loan on pledged goods, or 


buys pledged goods on the condition that the seller may repurchase said goods, shall hold said 


goods for at least thirty (30) days before disposing of them by sale, transfer, shipment or 


otherwise.  Non-pledged goods bought under this section shall be held for at least seven (7)thirty 


(30) calendar days before disposing of them by sale, transfer, shipment or otherwise. 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Exhibit A







 
 1 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


ORDINANCE 


NO. 2014-20 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO REVISE PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO DISPOSAL OF 


ARTICLES HELD BY PAWNBROKERS; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING 


ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC 


HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF 


THE SAME THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT 


PERTAINS TO PAWNBROKERS, DEALERS IN PRECIOUS METALS AND GEMS 


AND FLEA MARKET OPERATORS (ARTICLE VI OF CHAPTER 8), BE AMENDED 


AS FOLLOWS: 


 


Section 1. By deleting the last sentence of Section 8-230, pertaining to “Disposal of 


Articles”, of Division 2 of Article VI of Chapter 8, in its entirety, and by replacing 


it with a new last sentence in Section 8-230 of Division 2 of Article VI of Chapter 


8, to be read as follows: 


Non-pledged goods bought under this section shall be held for at least thirty (30) calendar 


days before disposing of them by sale, transfer, shipment or otherwise. 


 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Exhibit B







 
 2 


Section 2. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the 


Board of Commissioners for Fayette County. 


 


Section 3. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 


hereby repealed. 


 


Section 4. In any event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 


shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall 


in no manner affect other sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases of 


this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the section, 


subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional were not a part thereof.  The Board of Commissioners hereby 


declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this Ordinance if it had 


known that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 
 3 


SO ENACTED this ______ day of ____________________, 2014. 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


 


By:_______________________ 


     Steve Brown, Chairman 


(SEAL)  


 


 


ATTEST:      


 


 


___________________________ 


Floyd Jones, County Clerk 


 


 


Approved as to form: 


 


___________________________ 


County Attorney 





		Code Enforcement- Pawn Brokers Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement- Pawn Brokers Agenda Request with Backup

		Code Enforcement- Pawn Brokers Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement- Pawn Brokers Backup

		Code Enforcement- Pawn Brokers Backup

		Code Enforcement- Pawn Brokers Backup 2

		Code Enforcement- Pawn Brokers Backup 3



		Pawnbrokers Ordinance (Section 8-230) - Ordinance














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Public Hearing #2


Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs


Public Hearing on staff's request to approve a transfer of license for Sequoia Golf Whitewater, LLC. from Mr. Joseph I. Guerra to Mr. 


Stephen Soriano for on-premises malt beverage, wine, and distilled spirit sales.


Sequoia Golf Whitewater, LLC., has a current 2014 license and has renewed for a 2015 Alcoholic Beverage License for on-premises 


consumption of malt beverage, wine, and distilled spirits.   


 


This license is in good standing and the applicants have met all requirements for the transfer of license.


Approval a transfer of license for Sequoia Golf Whitewater, LLC. from Mr. Joseph I. Guerra to Mr. Stephen Soriano for on-premises malt 


beverage, wine, and distilled spirit sales.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, December 11, 2014 Public Hearing








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Consent Agenda #13


Board of Commissioners County Clerk Floyd Jones


Approval of the County Clerk's request to adopt the 2015 County Commission Meeting Schedule.


Each year, the Board of Commissioners formally adopts its meeting schedule.  The meeting schedule is then distributed to citizens, the 


media, and to staff.  The adopted meeting schedule is also added to the County's website for reference. 


 


Typically, the months of November and December have only one meeting per month as the second Thursday of each months falls on a 


nationally recognized holiday. 


 


This meeting schedule may need to be amended based on the Association County Commissioners Georgia's training calendar after it is 


made available.  If amendments are needed, the amended meeting schedule will be brought back to the Board at a later date for a formal 


vote.


Approval of the County Clerk's request to adopt the 2015 County Commission Meeting Schedule.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, December 11, 2014 Consent







 2015 COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE 


THIS SCHEDULE REFLECTS THE CURRENT MEETING FORMAT FOR MEETINGS AS FOLLOWS: 


 


REGULAR MEETINGS ON THE 2ND AND 4TH THURSDAY OF EACH MONTH AT 7 P.M.: Agendas for these “Regular” meetings can 
include any subject but in particular, matters of interest to the general public such as public hearings on rezoning petitions, 
budget discussions, and requests from County Departments that require action by the Board, etc. Thursday meetings include a 
time for “Public Comment” when attendees can speak to the Board on any subject not on the meeting’s agenda.  Attendees will 
be permitted to speak on Agenda items as they are addressed in the meeting. Agendas are prepared and published in advance. 
All sessions are open to the public and are attended by members of the Press. 
 
Canceled meetings, special called meetings and special topic workshops are announced in accordance with requirements of 
State law. *PLEASE NOTE THAT DURING THE MONTHS OF NOVEMBER AND DECEMBER, THE TYPICAL MEETING DATES ARE 


OFTEN ALTERED TO ACCOMMODATE HOLIDAY SCHEDULES. 


 
 
DATE 


 
TIME 


 
NOTES 


 
 


 
DATE 


 
TIME 


 
NOTES 


 
Thursday, January 8 


7:00 
p.m. 


Organizational 
Meeting 


 
 


Thursday, July 9 7:00 p.m.  


Thursday, January 
22 


7:00 
p.m. 


 
 


 
 


Thursday, July 23 7:00 p.m.  


 
Thursday, February 
12 


 
7:00 
p.m. 


 
 


 
 


Thursday, August 13 7:00 p.m.  


Thursday, February 
26 


 
7:00 
p.m. 


 
 


 
 


Thursday, August 27 7:00 p.m.  


 
Thursday, March 12 


 
7:00 
p.m. 


 
 


 
 


Thursday, September 
10 


7:00 p.m.  


 
Thursday, March 26 


 
7:00 
p.m. 


 
  


 
 


Thursday, September 
24 


7:00 p.m.  


Thursday, April 9 7:00 
p.m. 


 
 


 
 


Thursday, October 8 7:00 p.m.  


Thursday, April 23 7:00 
p.m. 


 
 


 
 


Thursday, October 22 7:00 p.m.  


Thursday, May 14 7:00 
p.m. 


  
 


Thursday, November 
12 


7:00 p.m.  


Thursday, May 28 7:00 
p.m. 


  
 


Thursday, November 
26 


No 
Meeting 


Thanksgiving Day 


Thursday, June 11 7:00 
p.m. 


 
 


 
 


Thursday, December 
10 


7:00 p.m.  


Thursday, June 25 7:00 
p.m. 


 
 


 
 


Thursday, December 
24 


No 
Meeting 


Christmas Eve 
Day 


 





		Commissioners- 2015 Meeting Schedule Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- 2015 Meeting Schedule Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Proclamation/Recognition #1


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Recognition of Commissioner Allen McCarty for his years of service on the Fayette County Board of Commissioners.


Commissioner Allen McCarty was elected to the Fayette County Board of Commissioners during the November 2010 election, and he 


was sworn into office in January 2011. 


 


Commissioner McCarty has faithfully served the people of Fayette County during his four years in office.  During his time in office, 


Commissioner McCarty focused on bringing greater transparency of County meetings to the public, and he is to be credited for bringing 


the need for greater audio / visual technology to the County. 


 


Commissioner McCarty is a staunch supporter of the United States Constitution and has based his thoughts and votes on that revered, 


foundational document. 


 


Commissioner McCarty and his wife plan to enjoy their retirement and look forward to spending time with their family and ministry.


Recognition of Commissioner Allen McCarty for his years of service on the Fayette County Board of Commissioners.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, December 11, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #18


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Mr. Darryl Paul to the Fayette County Ethics Board for a three-


year term beginning November 8, 2014 and expiring November 7, 2017.


In November 2010, the Board of Commissioners passed Ordinance 2010-10 which established the Fayette County Ethics Board.  The 


Board consists of three members and two alternate members. Each Ethics Board member and alternative member is appointed to a 


three-year term. 


 


In September 2014, the County advertised for one position that would become available on November 7, 2014.  The advertisement was 


run for one month and was circulated to the Fayette Daily News, The Citizen, and the Atlanta Journal-Constitution.  Five Fayette County 


citizens applied for consideration of appointment to the Ethics Board.  Chairman Brown and Commissioner Ognio were appointed as the 


Selection Committee for this position.  


 


Each of the five applicants were interviewed by the Selection Committee and Mr. Darryl Paul was selected to be appointed to the Fayette 


County Ethics Board.


Approval of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Mr. Darryl Paul to the Fayette County Ethics Board for a three-year 


term beginning November 8, 2014 and expiring November 7, 2017.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


December 11, 2014 New Business























(1)


Fayette County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances >> PART II - COUNTY CODE >> Chapter 2 - 
ADMINISTRATION >> ARTICLE IV. - OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES >> DIVISION 3. CODE OF ETHICS >> 


DIVISION 3. CODE OF ETHICS [3]


Sec. 2-200. Purpose.


Sec. 2-201. Definitions.


Sec. 2-202. Standards.


Sec. 2-203. Exceptions.


Sec. 2-204. Disclosure of interest in legislative action.


Sec. 2-205. Abstentions.


Sec. 2-206. Enforcement and administration.


Sec. 2-207. Penalties.


Sec. 2-208. Compliance with applicable laws.


Secs. 2-209—2-239. Reserved.


Sec. 2-200. Purpose.


The proper operation of local government requires that the public officials be independent, 


impartial and responsible to the people; that the government decisions and policy be made through 


proper channels of the governmental structure; that public office not be used for personal gain; that 


the public officials be free from the appearance of impropriety; and that the public have confidence 


in the integrity of its government. In recognition of these goals, a code of ethics for all county 


officials is adopted. The purpose of this policy is to establish ethical standards of conduct for all 


such officials by setting forth those acts or actions that are incompatible with the best interests of 


the county and by directing disclosure by such officials of private financial or other interests in 


matters affecting the county. 


(Code 1992, § 2-207; Ord. No. 2010-10, § 1, 11-18-2010) 


Sec. 2-201. Definitions.


The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this division, shall have the meanings 


ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 


Business entity means any business, proprietorship, firm, partnership, person in either a 


representative or a fiduciary capacity, association, venture, trust, or corporation. 


Confidential information means any information which, by law or practice, is not available to 


the public. 


County official or official means the county board of commissioners, county administrator, 


county attorney and his assistants, and any county employee who has been appointed to the 


position by the board of commissioners. For purposes of this policy, a county official shall be 


deemed to have an interest in the affairs of: 


His immediate family;


Page 1 of 10Municode


5/19/2014https://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=https%3a%2...







(2)


(3)


(a)


(1)


(2)


(3)


(4)


(b)


(c)


(d)


(e)


(f)


Any business entity in which the county official is an officer, director, or member 


having a financial interest in, or employed by it; or 


Any business entity as to which the stock, legal ownership, or beneficial ownership of 


a county official is in excess of five percent of the total stock or total legal and 


beneficial ownership, or which is controlled or owned directly or indirectly by the 


county official. 


Immediate family means an official and the spouse of an official, their parents, children, 


brothers and sisters related by blood or marriage. 


Interest means direct or indirect pecuniary or material benefit accruing to a public officer or 


official as a result of a contract or transaction which is or may be the subject of an official act or 


action by or with the county except for such contracts or transactions which, by their terms and by 


the substance of their provisions, confer the opportunity and right to realize the accrual of similar 


benefits to all other persons and/or property similarly situated. 


Official act or action means any legislative, administrative, appointive or discretionary act of 


any official of the county or any agency, board, committee, authority or commission thereof. 


Reprimand means an expression of disapproval. 


(Code 1992, § 2-208; Ord. No. 2010-10, § 1, 11-18-2010) 


Sec. 2-202. Standards.


Interest in contract or transaction. No county official having the power or duty to perform an 


official act or action related to a contract or transaction which is or may be the subject of an 


official act or action of the county shall: 


Have or thereafter acquire an interest in such contract or transaction;


Have an interest in any business entity involved in such contract or transactions;


Have solicited or accepted present or future employment with a person or business 


entity involved in such contract or transaction; or 


Have solicited or accepted a present or future gift, favor, service, or thing of value 


from a person involved in such contract or transaction, except as provided in section 


2-203. 


Pre-acquisition of interest. No county official shall acquire an interest in a contract or 


transaction which is or may be the subject of an official act or action of the county at a time 


when the county official believes or has reason to believe that such contract or transaction 


will be directly or indirectly affected by an official act or action of the county. 


Disclosure of information. No county official shall without proper legal authorization, disclose 


confidential information concerning the property, government, or affairs of the county, or use 


such information to advance the financial or other private interest of himself or others. 


No county official shall waive the attorney-client privilege or disclose any documents 


protected by the attorney-client privilege without the consent of the majority of the board of 


commissioners. 


No county official shall disclose to others matters discussed in executive session of any 


board or commission without the consent of the majority of the board of commissioners or 


until after the minutes of the meeting is required to be released as a matter of law. 


Incompatible service. No county official shall engage in or accept private employment or 


render service for any private entity, when such employment or service is incompatible with 


Page 2 of 10Municode


5/19/2014https://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=https%3a%2...







(g)


(h)


(i)


(j)


(k)


(l)


(m)


(n)


(a)


(b)


(1)


(2)


(3)


the proper discharge of his official duties or would tend to impair his independence of 


judgment or action in the performance of his official duties, unless otherwise permitted by law 


and unless disclosure is made as provided in this policy. 


Appearance. No county official shall appear on behalf of any private person other than 


himself, his spouse or minor children, before any county agency, authority or board, 


However, a member of the board of commissioners may appear before such groups on 


behalf of his constituents in the course of his duties as a representative of the electorate or in 


the performance of public or civic obligations. 


Public property. No county official shall request or permit the unauthorized use of county-


owned vehicles, equipment, materials or property for personal convenience or profit. 


Special treatment. No county official shall grant any special consideration, treatment or 


advantage to any citizen beyond that which is available to every other citizen in the same or 


similar circumstances. 


Later case interest. No county official shall, after the termination of service or employment 


with the county, accept remuneration of any kind for any appearance before any board, 


commission, committee, agency or authority of the county on behalf of any adverse party in 


relation to any case, proceeding, or application in which he personally participated during the 


period of his service or employment, which was under his active consideration during the 


period of his service or employment or as to which he could have acquired knowledge or 


information during the period of his service or employment. 


Political recrimination. No county official, whether elected or appointed, shall promise an 


appointment or threaten the dismissal from any county position as a reward or punishment 


for any political activity. 


Withholding of information. No county official shall knowingly withhold any information which 


would impair the proper decision making of any of the county board, authorities, agency or 


commissions. 


Payment of debts. All county officials shall settle all accounts between them and the county, 


including the payment of taxes, in a timely fashion. 


Organizational integrity. County commissioners, as policy makers, shall refrain from 


interfering in the daily administrative affairs of department directors. Commissioners shall not 


make recommendations regarding the hiring, firing or disciplining of department directors and 


other county employees. 


(Code 1992, § 2-209; Ord. No. 2010-10, § 1, 11-18-2010; Ord. No. 2013-01, § 1, 2-19-2013) 


Sec. 2-203. Exceptions.


It shall not be deemed a violation of the standards of this policy if the interest of a county 


official in a person or business entity is a contractual obligation of less than $500.00 which 


has not been preceded by any other obligation, discharged or existing, between the parties, 


and which is not the first in a series of two or more loans or debts which either of the parties 


is under any obligation to make or incur. 


The following shall not be deemed a violation of the standards of this policy:


Legitimate salary, benefits, fees, commissions, or expenses associated with an 


official's non-public business; 


An award, plaque, certificate, memento, or similar item given in recognition of the 


official's civic, charitable, political, professional, or public service; 


Food, beverages, and registration at group events to which all similarly situated 


officials are invited; 


Page 3 of 10Municode


5/19/2014https://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=https%3a%2...







(4)


(5)


(6)


(7)


(8)


(9)


(c)


(1)


(2)


(a)


(b)


(a)


(1)


(2)


Actual and reasonable expenses for food, beverages, travel, lodging, and registration 


for a meeting which are provided to an official so that he may participate or speak at 


the meeting; 


A commercially reasonable loan made in the ordinary course of business;


Any gift with a total value less than $100.00 in any calendar year;


Promotional items generally distributed to public officials generally;


A gift from a member of the public official's immediate family; or


Food, beverage, or expenses afforded public officials, and members of their 


immediate families, or others that are associated with normal and customary business 


or social functions or activities. 


It shall not be deemed a violation of the standards of this policy if a county official, in his 


capacity as such official, participates in the making of a contract even if such official has a 


private pecuniary interest or performs in regard to that contract some function requiring the 


exercise of discretion on his part, if: 


The contract is awarded through a process of public notice and competitive bidding; or 


The board of commissioners at regular meeting, after determining that it is in the best 


interest of the county to do so, authorizes the participation. 


(Code 1992, § 2-210; Ord. No. 2010-10, § 1, 11-18-2010) 


Sec. 2-204. Disclosure of interest in legislative action.


Any member of the board of commissioners of the county, who has financial or personal 


interest in any proposed legislation before the commission shall immediately disclose on the 


record the nature and extent of such interest. 


Any other official who has a financial or personal interest in any proposed legislative action of 


the board of commissioners, and who participates in discussion with or gives an official 


opinion or recommendation to the commission, shall disclose on the record the nature and 


extent of such interest. 


(Code 1992, § 2-211; Ord. No. 2010-10, § 1, 11-18-2010) 


Sec. 2-205. Abstentions.


A county official who has an interest that he has reason to believe may be affected by an 


official act or action shall abstain from any participation in the same. 


(Code 1992, § 2-212; Ord. No. 2010-10, § 1, 11-18-2010) 


Sec. 2-206. Enforcement and administration.


Constituting the board; chairperson.


The board of ethics of the county is hereby created and authorized by the board of 


commissioners. 


The board of ethics of the county shall be composed of three residents of the county 


to be appointed as provided herein. Each member of the board of ethics shall have 


been a resident of the county for at least one year immediately preceding the date of 


taking office and shall remain a resident of the county while serving as a member of 


the board of ethics. No person shall serve as a member of the board of ethics if the 


person has, or has had within the preceding one year period, any interest in any 


contract, transaction, or official action of the county. 


Page 4 of 10Municode


5/19/2014https://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=https%3a%2...







(3)


(4)


(5)


(6)


(7)


(b)


(1)


(2)


(3)


(4)


(5)


(c)


(1)


a.


b.


The members of the board of commissioners may nominate persons to serve on the 


board of ethics, who shall be appointed by a majority vote of the board of 


commissioners. These individuals must agree to undergo a criminal background 


check conducted by the county marshal prior to designation, and/or redesignation, the 


results of which will be forwarded to the board of commissioners. These individuals 


should be available to be called upon for their term of office. At the end of each term, 


the board of commissioners shall appoint eligible residents to fill the board. Current 


members can be reappointed and there shall be no term limits for the members. If a 


member of the board of ethics does not finish their term, the remainder of the term 


shall be filled through an appointment by the board of commissioners. 


Alternates. In addition to the members of the board, the board of commissioners shall 


appoint two alternate members. These alternates shall be appointed in the same 


manner as members of the board of ethics. 


If any member of the board of ethics has a conflict of interest in any matter before the 


board, the remaining two members of the board of ethics shall select an alternate to 


serve for that matter from the two alternative members appointed by the board of 


commissioners. 


The board shall select a chairperson at the beginning of each matter to be heard.


Term of office. The term of office for each member of the board of ethics and 


alternates shall be for three years, however. In the appointment of the first board, one 


member and one alternate shall be appointed for three years; one member and one 


alternate for two years and one member for one year. It is the intent of this section 


that their terms be staggered. Any vacancy in the membership shall be filled for the 


unexpired term in the same manner as the initial appointment. 


Duties of board. The board of ethics shall have the following duties and powers: 


To administer the ethics ordinance;


To receive, review, process, make determinations on, and hear complaints of 


violations of standards required by this chapter. The board is not designed to be an 


oversight board or to perform investigations; 


To make such response to a complaint as it deems necessary to determine whether 


any person has violated any provisions of this chapter; 


To hold such hearings and make such inquiries as deemed necessary to investigate 


and rule upon complaints; and 


To report its findings and actions to the board of commissioners.


Administration.


Complaints.


All complaints of ethical violations must be filed with the county clerk, in writing, 


signed by the complainant, no later than 90 days after the alleged act occurred 


unless the complainant, by exercising reasonable diligence, failed to discover 


the alleged ethical violation within such 90 day period. In such a case, the 


complainant must file a written complaint with the county clerk no later than 90 


days after the complainant discovered the alleged violation. In all such cases 


brought after 90 days from the date of the alleged ethical violation, the 


complainant bears the burden of convincing the board of the true date 


complainant learned of the alleged violation. 


In no event, shall an ethical charge be filed with the county clerk more than two 


years from the date of the alleged ethical violation. 


Page 5 of 10Municode


5/19/2014https://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=https%3a%2...







c.


(2)


a.


b.


c.


(3)


a.


b.


c.


d.


e.


(4)


(5)


The complainant may withdraw the complaint at any time in writing.


Pay and staff support.


The members of the board of ethics shall serve without compensation. The 


governing authority of the county shall provide meeting space for the board of 


ethics. Subject to budgetary procedures and requirements of the county, the 


county shall provide the board of ethics with such supplies and equipment as 


may be reasonably necessary for it to perform its duties and responsibilities. 


The county clerk shall serve as the recording secretary to the board and shall 


provide such administrative services to the board as may be necessary. 


Subject to budgetary procedures and requirements of the county, the county 


shall provide the board of ethics with such legal staffing as may be reasonably 


necessary for it to perform its duties and responsibilities by an attorney who 


does not serve at the county attorney. 


Action by the board. Within 30 days of receipt of a complaint from the county clerk, the 


board may perform one or more of the following: 


Upon receipt of a complaint in proper form, review the complaint to determine 


whether the complaint is unjustified, frivolous, patently unfounded or fails to 


state facts sufficient to invoke disciplinary jurisdiction. The board of ethics shall 


be empowered to collect evidence and information concerning any complaint 


and to add the findings and results of its investigation to the file containing such 


complaint; 


Upon completion of its review and/or investigation of a complaint, the board at 


a public meeting may dismiss those complaints which are unjustified, frivolous, 


patently unfounded or which fail to state facts sufficient to invoke disciplinary 


jurisdiction. Provided, however, that a rejection of such complaint by the board 


of ethics shall not deprive the complaining party of any action he might 


otherwise have at law or in equity against the respondent. A rejection shall 


prevent refiling of a complaint regarding the same subject(s) and alleged 


perpetrator(s) for the same offense; 


Admonish, formally reprimand, publicly censure, any complaining party that 


files an unjustified, frivolous, patently unfounded or factually insufficient 


complaint; 


Forward an order to the board of commissioners; or


Hold a public hearing within 60 days after the complaint was received.


Parties right. At any hearing held by the board of ethics, the official who is the subject 


of a complaint shall have the right to written notice of the allegations at least ten 


business days before a hearing, to be represented by counsel, to hear and examine 


the evidence and witnesses and to present evidence and witnesses in opposition or in 


extenuation according to the procedures contained in subsection (6) of this section. 


Advisory opinions. When any official has a doubt regarding the applicability of any 


provision of this chapter to a particular situation, or regarding the definition of its 


terms, he may apply in writing or verbally during a public meeting to the county 


attorney for an advisory opinion. The advisory opinion shall be written unless it is 


given verbally during a public meeting, and may be provided directly to the requestor 


of such opinion. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to prohibit a request for an 


informal opinion by any public official from the county attorney regarding a potential 


conflict of interest. Neither a request for an informal opinion, nor the making of a 


statement concerning a potential conflict of interest made by a member of the 


Page 6 of 10Municode


5/19/2014https://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=https%3a%2...







(6)


a.


b.


c.


d.


e.


f.


g.


h.


i.


governing body in the course of abstaining from voting shall create a presumption or 


inference that a public servant actually has a personal interest in the matter about 


which the opinion was requested. 


Hearing procedures.


At the hearing the conduct of the parties shall be dignified both on and off the 


record.


Misconduct before the board may be grounds for summary exclusion from the 


hearing. The hearing is intended to receive evidence either to refute or to 


substantiate specific charges. It shall not be a forum for discussion of 


extraneous or irrelevant matters having no bearing on the charges, and the 


alleged misconduct of others who may have escaped discipline in the past shall 


serve as no defense. All parties at action and witnesses shall be given ample 


time and opportunity to develop points, subject to the discretion of the board. 


It should be recognized that the board will be composed of private citizens. 


Accordingly the board may not follow established legal procedures as might be 


expected in a court of law. However, in taking testimony and in considering the 


evidence, the board shall follow accepted legal procedure insofar as is 


practicable but shall not be bound by the technical rules of evidence observed 


in courts of law. The board may decline to listen to numerous character 


witnesses or numbers of witnesses testifying to identical facts. 


The chairperson of the board of ethics shall conduct the hearing.


The hearing shall be recorded and the county clerk shall prepare a written 


summary of the hearing. The complainant and/or respondent may provide a 


court reporter at their expense for a verbatim transcript of the hearing, if so 


desired. The county clerk, or their designee shall take minutes of the hearing, 


specifically including the name of the board members who make any motions, 


the board members who second any such motions, and the names of the 


individuals on the board and how each voted. This written report shall be 


presented to the board of commissioners at the conclusion of the board's 


proceedings. 


Three members of the constituted board shall be required to conduct the 


hearing. The ethics board may, before the hearing and upon ten days' notice to 


all parties, approve regulations governing conduct of ethics board hearings so 


long as such regulations do not conflict with this article. 


The person who filed the complaint ("complainant") shall present his case to 


the board first. 


All documentary evidence which is anticipated to be submitted to the board at 


the hearing by either the respondent or the complainant, and the names, with 


telephone numbers, of all individuals expected to present testimony to the 


board on behalf of either the respondent or complainant, must be given to the 


county clerk and the opposing party at least ten days in advance of the hearing. 


This requirement shall not apply to evidence used solely for purposes of cross-


examination or rebuttal. The failure of a party to adhere to this rule shall 


preclude such party from tendering such evidence or individual's testimony at 


the hearing through any form. The respondent, complainant, and the public 


shall be entitled to see all such lists which are placed on file with the county 


clerk. 


Page 7 of 10Municode


5/19/2014https://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=https%3a%2...







j.


k.


l.


m.


n.


o.


p.


q.


r.


s.


t.


u.


The board may compel the production of any document in the possession of 


the county and subject to the Open Records Act, O.C.G.A. title 50, ch. 18, art. 


4 (O.C.G.A. § 50-18-70 et seq.) and the testimony of any county employee. 


Where the board compels any such document or testimony after a hearing has 


commenced a continuation shall be provided so that such order can be 


complied with. 


Neither party shall have the right to require depositions of any individual, 


including the opposite party. 


The complainant's evidence must prove that respondent is guilty of the offense 


charged by the evidentiary standard commonly referred to as "preponderance 


of the evidence." 


Each witness presented by the complainant, and including the complainant, 


shall be subject to cross-examination by the individual accused of the ethical 


violation ("respondent") or such person's representative. 


At the conclusion of the complainant's case, the respondent shall be entitled to 


move for dismissal based on insufficient evidence on the part of complainant's 


case. If respondent makes such a motion and the board, by majority vote, 


agrees to dismiss the complaint, the hearing shall be terminated at this point. If 


either the respondent fails to make such a motion, or, if the board decides by 


majority vote to overrule respondent's motion, the hearing shall continue. The 


board may also direct a decision in favor of the respondent upon the board's 


own initiative. 


Respondent shall then be entitled to present his evidence to the board.


Respondent is not required to testify. The absence of respondent's testimony 


shall not be viewed by the board as an admission of any sort. 


If respondent testifies, then respondent shall be subject to cross-examination 


by complainant. All other witnesses who testify in the respondent's case shall 


be subject to cross-examination by complainant. 


All persons who testify before the board, shall be placed under oath, by either 


the chairperson or a person designated by the chairperson. 


At the conclusion of respondent's case, the complainant may offer rebuttal 


evidence only to those items presented in respondent's case. At the conclusion 


of complainant's rebuttal, respondent shall be entitled to offer rebuttal evidence 


only to those matters presented in complainant's rebuttal case. 


During the course of testimony and at the conclusion of all the testimony and 


closure of all of the evidence, the board members may ask questions of any of 


the individuals who testified before the board. 


At the conclusion of all questions by parties and board members, the 


chairperson shall end the hearing and permit the board to deliberate in public. If 


the board decides by majority vote that additional evidence is needed to make 


a decision, the board shall have the authority to require either the complainant 


or respondent to submit additional evidence at a continuation of the hearing 


which must be held no later than 45 days after the date of the initial hearing. 


The board has no authority to continue the hearing past this 45-day deadline. 


Following the conclusion of any additional evidence received at the continued 


hearing, the board shall continue to deliberate. When deliberations are 


concluded, the chairperson shall call for a vote. The board may vote 


immediately after deliberations are concluded or they may continue the 


Page 8 of 10Municode


5/19/2014https://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=https%3a%2...







1.


2.


3.


4.


5.


6.


v.


w.


(d)


(1)


(2)


(3)


(4)


(5)


a.


b.


c.


d.


e.


f.


g.


(6)


meeting for up to two weeks when a public vote must be taken. The board's 


first vote must be whether the respondent violated the ethics code as charged 


by the complainant. If, by majority vote, the board rules that the respondent did 


not violate the ethics code as charged by the complainant, then the matter is 


concluded. If the board, by majority vote, concludes that the respondent did 


violate the ethics code as charged by the complainant, then the board must 


make a second decision by majority vote. The second decision involves the 


form of penalty. The board shall have six options of penalty which include: 


No admonishment and no further action;


A public reprimand and admonishment not to violate the ethics code in 


the future;


Formal reprimand;


Public censure;


Recommendation for termination, resignation, or recall; or


Recommendation of prosecution in the state court of the county.


The complainant may withdraw his complaint at any time without the approval 


of the board. 


An order will be generated by the board and submitted to the board of 


commissioners for inclusion in the minutes within 15 days of the completed 


hearing. 


Judicial review of decisions.


Any public official adversely affected by any final decision of the board of ethics under 


subsection (f) of this section may obtain judicial review of such decision as provided in 


this subsection. 


An action for judicial review may be commenced in the superior court of the county 


within 30 days after the decision of the board of ethics becomes final. 


The effective date of the final decision of the board of ethics shall be postponed 


pending judicial review as provided for in this subsection. 


The record on review, unless otherwise stipulated by the parties, shall include the 


original or certified copies of all pleadings, testimony, evidence, exhibits, and other 


papers presented to or considered by the board of ethics and the findings and 


decisions of the board of ethics. As to alleged procedural irregularities, evidence may 


be taken independently by the court. 


If the court finds no error, it shall affirm the decision of the board of ethics. The court 


shall hold unlawful and set aside the decision of the board of ethics if it finds that such 


action was: 


Arbitrary or capricious;


A denial of a statutory right;


Contrary to constitutional right, power, privilege, or immunity;


In excess of statutory jurisdiction, authority, purposes, or limitation;


Not in accord with the procedures or procedural limitations of this section or as 


otherwise required by law; 


An abuse of discretion, unsupported by substantial evidence when the record is 


considered as a whole; or 


Otherwise contrary to law.


Page 9 of 10Municode


5/19/2014https://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=https%3a%2...







(1)


(2)


(3)


(4)


The decision of the trial court shall be subject to appellate review in the same manner 


and with the same effect as in appeals from a final judgment or decree in any other 


civil action. 


(Code 1992, § 2-213; Ord. No. 2010-10, § 1, 11-18-2010) 


Sec. 2-207. Penalties.


County officials are subject to the following penalties and action for breach of ethics: 


Written warning or reprimand;


Cancellation of the contract or rejection of the bid or offer;


Recovery of the value transferred or received; and/or


Debarment or suspension from award of county contract for a period of up to three 


years. 


(Code 1992, § 2-214; Ord. No. 2010-10, § 1, 11-18-2010) 


Sec. 2-208. Compliance with applicable laws.


No officer or official shall engage in any activity or transaction that is prohibited by any law, 


now existing or hereafter enacted, which is applicable to him by virtue of his office. 


(Code 1992, § 2-215; Ord. No. 2010-10, § 1, 11-18-2010) 


Secs. 2-209—2-239. Reserved.


FOOTNOTE(S):


--- (3) --- 


State Law reference— Ethics in government, O.C.G.A. § 21-5-1 et seq. (Back)


Page 10 of 10Municode


5/19/2014https://library.municode.com/print.aspx?h=&clientID=11841&HTMRequest=https%3a%2...





		Commissioners- Darryl Paul Ethics Board Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Darryl Paul Ethics Board Backup

		Commissioners- Darryl Paul Ethics Board Backup-1

		Commissioners- Darryl Paul Ethics Board Backup-2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #17


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of the reappointment of Kim Bradley as the Town of Brooks' representative on the Fayette County Library Board for a four-


year term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December 31, 2018.


The Fayette County Library Board is an advisory board to the Board of Commissioners but has some decision-making authority in its 


relationship to the Regional Library Board.  The Library Board is composed of seven members who serve four-year terms each.  Four of 


the seven members are appointed by jurisdictions within Fayette County, namely, the cities of Fayetteville and Peachtree City and the 


towns of Tyrone and Brooks.  The Fayette County Board of Commissioners then, essentially, ratifies the nominations made by the 


jurisdictions to the Library Board.  The three remaining positions on the Library Board are directly appointed by the Fayette County Board 


of Commissioners. 


 


Kim Bradley currently serves on the Fayette County Library Board, and her current appointment expires on December 31, 2014.  The 


Town of Brooks has notified Fayette County that it has reappointed Ms. Bradley to the Fayette County Library Board. 


 


Approval of the reappointment of Kim Morris as the Town of Brooks' representative on the Fayette County Library Board for a four-year 


term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December 31, 2018.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, December 11, 2014 New Business








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #16


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of the reappointment of Lisa Richardson as the Town of Tyrone's representative on the Fayette County Library Board for a 


four-year term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December 31, 2018.


The Fayette County Library Board is an advisory board to the Board of Commissioners but has some decision-making authority in its 


relationship to the Regional Library Board.  The Library Board is composed of seven members who serve four-year terms each.  Four of 


the seven members are appointed by jurisdictions within Fayette County, namely, the cities of Fayetteville and Peachtree City and the 


towns of Tyrone and Brooks.  The Fayette County Board of Commissioners then, essentially, ratifies the nominations made by the 


jurisdictions to the Library Board.  The three remaining positions on the Library Board are directly appointed by the Fayette County Board 


of Commissioners. 


 


Lisa Richardson currently serves on the Fayette County Library Board, and her current appointment expires on December 31, 2014.  


Tyrone's Town Council voted and approved of Ms. Richardson's reappointment on Thursday, December 4, 2014. 


 


The Board is requested to ratify the town's decision to reappoint Lisa Richardson to the Fayette County Library Board.


Approval of the reappointment of Lisa Richardson as the Town of Tyrone's representative on the Fayette County Library Board for a four-


year term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December 31, 2018.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, December 11, 2014 New Business








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #15


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of the reappointment of Marie Washburn as the City of Peachtree City's representative on the Fayette County Library 


Board for a four-year term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December 31, 2018.


The Fayette County Library Board is an advisory board to the Board of Commissioners but has some decision-making authority in its 


relationship to the Regional Library Board.  The Library Board is composed of seven members who serve four-year terms each.  Four of 


the seven members are appointed by jurisdictions within Fayette County, namely, the cities of Fayetteville and Peachtree City and the 


towns of Tyrone and Brooks.  The Fayette County Board of Commissioners then, essentially, ratifies the nominations made by the 


jurisdictions to the Library Board.  The three remaining positions on the Library Board are directly appointed by the Fayette County Board 


of Commissioners. 


 


Marie Washburn currently serves on the Fayette County Library Board, and her current appointment expires on December 31, 2014.  The 


City of Peachtree City has notified the County that the Peachtree City Council has reappointed Ms. Washburn to the Fayette County 


Library Board (see attached letter). 


 


The Board is requested to ratify the city's decision to reappoint Marie Washburn to the Fayette County Library Board.


Approval of the reappointment of Ms. Marie Washburn as the City of Peachtree City's representative on the Fayette County Library Board 


for a four-year term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December 31, 2018.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, December 11, 2014 New Business









		Commissioners- Marie Washburn...Board Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Marie Washburn Library Board Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #20


Board of Commissioners Commissioner Allen McCarty


Consideration of Commissioner McCarty's recommendation to prominently display the national motto, "In God We Trust," in the Board of 


Commissioners Public Meeting Room.


Commissioner McCarty has recommended that the national motto, "In God We Trust," be prominently displayed in the Board of 


Commissioner's Public Meeting Room.   


 


This recommendation is based on information received by the Commission from In God We Trust- America, Inc., a 501(c)(3), with Ms. 


Jacquie Sullivan as Founder and President.  Ms. Sullivan has served as a City Councilmember in Bakersfield, California.  In 2002, she 


led her city council to "Vote Yes" to display "In God We Trust" in the Council Chamber at City Hall.  Shortly thereafter, eleven cities in 


Kern County, as well as other cities and counties throughout the United States were voting to do the same.  


 


This effort has led to an initiative whose sole purpose is to promote patriotism by encouraging elected officials to "Vote Yes" to display In 


God We Trust in their city and county chambers. 


 


"In God We Trust" was adopted as the official National Motto of the United States on July 30, 1956.  On November 1, 2011, the U.S. 


House of Representatives voted 396-9 to reaffirm "In God We Trust" as the nation's motto.


Approval of Commissioner McCarty's recommendation to prominently display the national motto, "In God We Trust," in the Board of 


Commissioners Public Meeting Room.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, December 11, 2014 New Business







1


Floyd Jones


From: Tameca P. White


Sent: Wednesday, November 12, 2014 9:56 AM


To: Floyd Jones


Subject: FW: Invitation To Join Us


Let’s discuss… 
 
 


 


Sincerely, 


Tameca P. White, MBA 


Chief Deputy County Clerk 
Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
140 Stonewall Avenue West 
Suite 100 
Fayetteville, GA 30214 
Office: 770-305-5103 
Fax: 770-305-5210 
 


www.fayettecountyga.gov 
 


����    Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail!  


 


From: Allen McCarty [mailto:Allen.McCarty@fayettecountyga.gov]  


Sent: Wednesday, November 12, 2014 9:55 AM 


To: Tameca P. White 


Subject: Re: Invitation To Join Us 


 


Very good! 


 


Sent from my iPhone 


 


On Nov 10, 2014, at 2:50 PM, "Tameca P. White" <twhite@fayettecountyga.gov> wrote: 


This can be added to the December 11th agenda.   
As a side note…we will need to discuss ways we plan to display the “IN GOD WE 
TRUST” so that we can make that part of the agenda request write up.  How’s that? 


  
  


  


Sincerely, 


Tameca P. White, MBA 


Chief Deputy County Clerk 







2


Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
140 Stonewall Avenue West 
Suite 100 
Fayetteville, GA 30214 
Office: 770-305-5103 
Fax: 770-305-5210 
  
www.fayettecountyga.gov 
  


����    Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail!  


  


From: Allen McCarty [mailto:Allen.McCarty@fayettecountyga.gov]  


Sent: Friday, November 7, 2014 7:44 PM 


To: Tameca P. White 


Subject: Fwd: Invitation To Join Us 


  


Can we prepare an agenda item proclaiming this!!! 


 


Sent from my iPhone 


 


Begin forwarded message: 


From: "In God We Trust - America, Inc" <jacquiesullivan@ingodwetrust-


america.org> 


Date: November 7, 2014 at 7:26:45 PM EST 


To: allen.mccarty@fayettecountyga.gov 


Subject: Invitation To Join Us 
Reply-To: jacquiesullivan@ingodwetrust-america.org 


 


 


  
 


  


  


**Please distribute this "Letter of Invitation" to your  


Elected Officials and appropriate staff. Thank You.  
Right-click here to download pictures.  To help protect your privacy, Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the 
Internet.


  


IN GOD WE TRUST~AMERICA, INC. 


Our Mission 
To Promote Patriotism 


By Encouraging Elected Officials to "Vote Yes" 







3


To Legally Display Our Congressionally Approved National Motto 
IN GOD WE TRUST 


In Every City, County Chamber and State Capitol 
In America 


  
  


Will You Be Part of This Patriotic Campaign?Will You Be Part of This Patriotic Campaign?Will You Be Part of This Patriotic Campaign?Will You Be Part of This Patriotic Campaign?  


  
 


 


 


  


Right-click here to download pictures.  To help p ro tect your privacy, Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.


 


  
Right-click here to download pictures.  To help protect your privacy, Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.


 


  


Jacquie Sullivan 
  


City Councilmember 
Bakersfield, CA 
In God We Trust ~ America 
Founder/President 
 
Office: 661.834.4943 
Cell: 661.332.3492 


  


Right-click here to download pictures.  To help p ro tect your privacy, Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.


 


  
Right-click here to download pictures.  To help protect your privacy, Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.


 


  


George Washington  
1st President of the U.S. 


  


Dear Honorable Elected Officials,  
  


  
This is an invitation to join the growing 
list of cities and counties across America 
that are "Voting Yes" to proudly and 
prominently display our national 
motto, IN GOD WE TRUST, in the 
Chamber where we conduct the people's 
business.  
  
My name is Jacquie Sullivan and I am 
the Founder and President of IN GOD 
WE TRUST~AMERICA, INC.  I 
have served as a City Councilmember in 
Bakersfield, California, since 1995. In 
2002, I led my City Council to "Vote 
Yes" to display  IN GOD WE TRUST, 
our Council Chamber at City Hall. Soon 
after, all eleven cities in the county of 
Kern, as well as other cities and counties, 
in California and across the country, 
were voting to do the same. 
  
To encourage this trend across America, 
we created a non-profit organization 
named IN GOD WE TRUST~AMERICA, 
INC. with 501(c) (3) non-profit status. Its 
sole purpose is to promote patriotism by 
encouraging elected officials to "Vote 
Yes" to display IN GOD WE TRUST in 
their city and county chambers. 
  
On July 30, 1956, during the Dwight D. 
Eisenhower administration, the U.S. 
Congress adopted IN GOD WE 
TRUST as the official National Motto of 
the United States of America. 
Thus, displaying our Motto is a legal 







4


Right-click here to download pictures.  To help p ro tect your privacy, Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.


 


  
Right-click here to download pictures.  To help protect your privacy, Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.


 


  


Patrick Henry 
1st & 6th Gov. of Virginia 


  


Right-click here to download pictures.  To help p ro tect your privacy, Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.


 


  
Right-click here to download pictures.  To help protect your privacy, Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.


 


  


John Adams 
2nd President of the U.S. 


  


Right-click here to download pictures.  To help p ro tect your privacy, Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.


 


  
Right-click here to download pictures.  To help protect your privacy, Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.


 


right, protected by the first amendment. 
  
UPDATE:  
  
On November 1, 2011 the U.S. House of 
Representatives voted overwhelmingly, 
396 - 9, to  reaffirm  IN GOD WE 
TRUST as our nation's motto. 
Congressman Randy Forbes, of Virginia, 
authored the bill, in part, because some 
have mistakenly stated that "E Pluribus 
Unum" is our national motto.  Most 
importantly, the resolution specifically 
encourages the placement of the motto 
in all government buildings from 
courthouses to school classrooms.   
  
As a grassroots patriotic movement, IN 
GOD WE TRUST~AMERICA, 
INC. stands on solid legal ground. To 
date, not one legal challenge has been 
raised against any city or county that 
has "Voted Yes." This effort is legal and 
there is nothing to challenge! 


  


Will You Be Part of Will You Be Part of Will You Be Part of Will You Be Part of 


This Patriotic This Patriotic This Patriotic This Patriotic 


Campaign?Campaign?Campaign?Campaign? 


  


This inspiring "Invitation to Join 
Us," letter is being emailed to elected 
officials, city-by-city and county-by-
county, across America. 
  
We are very pleased to announce that 
there are nearly 400 cities and counties 
across America that have already voted 
"Yes" and are now courageously 
displaying IN GOD WE TRUST, in 
their chambers.   


 
  


We are elected officials showing a 
commitment to the values our country 







5


  


Samuel Adams 
4th Gov. of 
Massachusetts 


  


Right-click here to download pictures.  To help p ro tect your privacy, Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.


 


  
Right-click here to download pictures.  To help protect your privacy, Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.


 


  


John Dickinson 
5th President of Penn. 


 


  
  


was founded upon. 
  


We urge you to place this issue on 
your meeting agenda for a positive 
outcome. When you "Vote Yes," please 
let us know so the name of 
your municipality can be added to the 
growing list of "Yes Vote Cities and 
Counties Across America," that we send 
across the country - to encourage 
others. In addition and so that you can 
receive the recognition that you deserve, 
a picture of your display, along with the 
names and photos of your elected 
officials, who "Voted Yes, will be added 
to our website. 
  
Please click on the three important 
links to take action: 
    
1. A "Sample Resolution" being used by 
many municipalities when they "Vote 
Yes" to display our National Motto. 
   
2. An updated list of the "Yes Vote" 
Counties and Cities Across America. 
  
3. A Legal Opinion from Pacific Justice 
Institute. 
  
Finally, we welcome you to call or 
contact us personally with any 
questions or encouragement we can 
provide. 
  
May God Bless America and may 
America's trust always be in God! 
  
Thank you in advance, 
  
Jacquie Sullivan 
Founder & President 


  


  
Right-click here to download pictures.  To  
help protect your privacy, Outlook prevented 
automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.


 


Right-click here to download pictures.  To  
help protect your privacy, Outlook prevented 
automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.


  


  


Will You Be Part of This Patriotic Campaign?Will You Be Part of This Patriotic Campaign?Will You Be Part of This Patriotic Campaign?Will You Be Part of This Patriotic Campaign? 


  







6


  
Right-click here to download pictures.  To  
help protect your privacy, Outlook prevented 
automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.


 


Right-click here to download pictures.  To  
help protect your privacy, Outlook prevented 
automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.


  


  
 


 


 


  


IN GOD WE TRUST~AMERICA, INC. 
P.O. BOX 11715 * Bakersfield, CA 93389 
Website: www.ingodwetrust-america.org 


A non-profit 501c3 educational corporation ID# 2624857 
   


 


  
 


Copyright © 2014. All Rights Reserved. 


   


  


 


 
Righ
t-
click 
here 
to  
dow
nloa
d 


pictu
res.  
To 
hel…


 


This email was sent to allen.mccarty@fayettecountyga.gov by jacquiesullivan@ingodwetrust-america.org |    
Update Profile/Email Address | Rapid removal with SafeUnsubscribe™ | Privacy Policy. 


Righ
t-
click 
here 
to  
dow
nloa
d 


pictu
res.   


 
IN GOD WE TRUST~AMERICA, INC. | P.O. BOX 11715 | Bakersfield | CA | 93389 


 


 


  


  





		Commissioners- National Motto Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- National Motto Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #19


Board of Commissioners Commissioner Randy Ognio


Consideration of Commissioner Ognio's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2014-19 requesting the Fayette County Legislative 


Delegation to consider offering changes to the statue governing the use of fluoride in drinking water.


During the summer of 2014, Fayette County, through its interns, researched the issue of continuing fluoridating its water system.  This 


research culminated with a meeting held on August 28, 2014 during which the findings of the interns was discussed. 


 


In order to begin the process of removing the requirement of fluoridation of the water supply, state law requires that a petition be signed 


by at least ten percent of the registered votes from the previous general election.  This requirement seems overly burdensome.  


 


Commissioner Ognio is requesting that Resolution 2014-19 be adopted by the Board.  The resolution will request Fayette County's 


Legislative Delegation to remove the burden of the "petition of 10 percent of the registered voters in such political division who voted in 


the last general election" from the existing statute and will allow all counties and cities who supply water to simply call for a referendum of 


their citizens.


Approval of Commissioner Ognio's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2014-19 requesting the Fayette County Legislative Delegation to 


consider offering changes to the statue governing the use of fluoride in drinking water.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, December 11, 2014 New Business







County of Fayette; 
State of Georgia 
 


 
RESOLUTION  2014-19 


 


RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE FAYETTE COUNTY 
LEGISLATIVE DELEGATION TO CONSIDER OFFERING 
CHANGES TO THE STATUE GOVERNING THE USE OF 


FLUORIDE IN DRINKING WATER 
 
WHEREAS, The Fayette County Board of Commissioners has held several public discussions pertaining to the use of 


fluoride in drinking water which is mandated by the State of Georgia; and  
 
WHEREAS, Noting that a number of Western European countries have elected not to fluoridate their drinking water; 


nevertheless, there is little statistical difference in tooth decay numbers compared to the U.S. ; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Fluoride is classified as a drug that is subject to U.S. Food and Drug Administration regulation, and 


quantity of consumption cannot be accurately controlled, especially by young children; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Many are in agreement with Swedish Nobel Laureate and Professor of Pharmacology Arvid Carlsson that 


fluoride is readily available commercially in a multitude of products, so the government should not have 
to force fluoride on anyone; and 


 
WHEREAS,  The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, October 22, 1999, stated that the predominate benefit 


from fluoride is through topical application and most fluoride is water ingested; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Many homeowners in Fayette County utilize well water that has no added fluoride and no evidence has 


yet to be provided where those drinking from a well have more tooth decay than those who do not; and 
 
WHEREAS,  In the existing statue, the petition requiring 10 percent of the registered voters from the previous general 


election to remove fluoride seems overly burdensome; and 
 
WHEREAS,  The Fayette County Board of Commissioners believes “home rule” is important and that the citizens 


should be allowed to control their own destiny, especially related to drugs or other substances added to 
their drinking water;   


 
BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED THAT the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County does hereby request that our county 
Legislative Delegation to act to remove the burden of the “petition of 10 percent of the registered voters in such political 
subdivision who voted in the last general election” from the existing statute and allow counties and cities who supply water to 
simply call for a referendum of their citizens. 
            
 So resolved this 11th day of December 2014, by the 
 
     
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


 FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
 
Attest:       _____________________________ 
       Steve Brown, Chairman 
_____________________________ 
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 





		Commissioners- Resolution 201...oride Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Resolution 2014-19 Fluoride Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Consent Agenda #7


Human Resources Lewis Patterson


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into a contract with The Carl Vinson Institute of Government at the University of Georgia to 


conduct a classification and compensation study of the Information Technology Department and up to six positions, beginning January 


21, 2015, with a cost estimate submitted for review in May 2015 and a final report submitted in June 2015 at a cost of $3,500.


The University of Georgia's Carl Vinson Institute of Government conducted the County's last classification and compensation study in 


2007.  Since that study UGA has assisted the County on an ongoing basis at no additional cost with updating job descriptions, grading 


new positions, creating new job descriptions and maintaining our pay grades.  The County contracted with UGA to conduct a study of 


Water System positions at the two water treatment plants during the fall of 2013. 


 


During the course of the proposed study UGA will meet personally with the County Administrator and Human Resources Director, 


department heads of areas being reviewed and selected departmental employees.  The scope of work will include the review and 


upgrade of the current classification and pay plan for selected employees; producing and updating job descriptions for the selected jobs 


and producing a classification system based on job content analysis; collecting wage and survey data to produce a recommended pay 


plan based on job analysis, job evaluation and wage survey data; and providing technical assistance to implement the study 


recommendations. The jurisdictions to be used in comparison will be as follows: Counties - Henry, Coweta and Spalding; Cities: Tyrone, 


Fayetteville. The proposed project will commence January 2015 with a preliminary cost estimate and report submitted for review in May 


2015 and a final report submitted in June 2015.


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into a contract with The Carl Vinson Institute of Government at the University of Georgia to 


conduct a classification and compensation study of the Information Technology Department and up to six positions, beginning January 


21, 2015, with a cost estimate submitted for review in May 2015 and a final report submitted in June 2015 at a cost of $3,500, to be 


provided through a mid-year Fiscal Year 2015 budget adjustment.


The $3,500 cost of the proposed study will be provided through a mid-year Fiscal Year 2015 budget adjustment. Any additional funding 


recommendations made at the conclusion of the study will be budgeted for during Fiscal Year 2016.


Yes Thursday, November 13, 2014


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Staff has identified the Human Resources Analyst and Engineering Technician as two of the six positions that warrant review.  


Additionally, UGA will develop a job description for the position of E-911 Call Taker and assign it to the proper pay grade.  If any other 


individual positions are deemed needing to be reviewed the County manager will get direction prior to them being included in this study. 


Thursday, December 11, 2014 Consent







 


1 


 


 


Program Confirmation 
 


Fayette County Board of Commissioners 


Follow-Up Classification & Compensation Study 


 


This is not an invoice 


Today’s Date:  December 3, 2014 


 


TO:  FROM: 


Mr. Lewis Patterson  Alex Daman 


Director of Human Resources  Public Service Assistant 


140 Stonewall Avenue, West  Suite 212 


Fayetteville, GA 30214 


  


 Carl Vinson Institute of Government 


201 North Milledge Ave. 


Athens, GA 30602 


770.305.5381  706.542.9048 


lpatterson@fayettecountyga.gov  adaman@uga.edu 


 


 


Project Name:  Follow-Up Classification & Compensation Study 


 


Start Date:   January 20, 2015 


End Date:  April 17, 2015 


 


Cost: $3,500   


 


 


Scope of Work 


 


Project Objective: To update the Carl Vinson Institute of Government's 2008 classification and 


compensation plan for select miscellaneous positions within the County and the County’s 


Information Technology Department. Please note up to six miscellaneous positions can be 


included in this project. The miscellaneous positions participating in this project will be selected 


by Fayette County. 


 


The project will include the following activities: 


• Carl Vinson Institute of Government's (CVIOG) will review the final report and related 


documents from the CVIOG’s 2008 classification and compensation study. (January 2015) 







2 


 


• Fayette County will provide organizational charts and related personnel documents for the 


Information Technology department and select miscellaneous positions. (January 2015) 


• CVIOG will conduct an on-site orientation meeting with the County Administrator, Human 


Resources Director, Information Technology Director describing in detail the activities that will 


be required to accomplish the project objectives. (January 2015) 


•        CVIOG will develop and distribute a detailed job survey form at the on-site orientation meeting 


to be completed by each incumbent in the Information Technology department and incumbents 


in the select miscellaneous positions (up to 6) participating in the project. (January 2015) 


•        CVIOG will conduct one on-site meeting with the County Administrator and Human Resources 


Director to review classification and compensation issues for the Information Technology 


department and the miscellaneous positions (up to 6) participating in the project . (February 


2015) 


• CVIOG will conduct on-site interviews with all employees from the Information Technology 


department to ensure adequate data for generating a complete and valid description of each 


job and job classification. (February 2015) 


•        CVIOG will conduct on-site interviews with all select miscellaneous employees (up to 6) 


participating in the project in order to ensure adequate data for generating a complete and valid 


description for each job and job classification. (February 2015) 


• Collect and analyze published salary survey data from the Georgia Department of Community 


Affairs, International City/County Management Association, and Bureau of Labor Statistics. The 


jurisdictions to be used in comparison will be as follows: Counties - Henry, Coweta and Spalding; 


Cities: Tyrone, Fayetteville. (February 2015 & March 2015) 


• Update classifications for positions within the Information Technology department and the 


select miscellaneous positions (up to 6) participating in this project to reflect current market 


conditions, job evaluation results, and organizational relationships. (March 2015) 


• Update payroll information for employees within the Information Technology department and 


the select miscellaneous employees (up to 6) participating in this project. (March 2015) 


• Develop cost estimate for implementing new classifications for employees within the 


Information Technology department and the select miscellaneous employees (up to 6) 


participating in this project. (March 2015) 


• Develop new job descriptions for positions within the Information Technology department and 


the select miscellaneous positions (up to 6) participating in this project. (March 2015) 


• Issue updated report. (March 2015 & April 2015) 


• Conduct one on-site meeting with administrative personnel and elected officials from Fayette 


County to review project results. (March 2015 & April 2015) 


 


If additional materials or services are requested after the date of the confirmation, the fee will 


be discussed and added to invoice. You will be invoiced upon completion of the project by 


CVIOG; please do not send in checks prior to receiving invoice. 


 


 





		Human Resources- Comp and Class Study Agenda Request File

		Human Resources- Comp and Class Study Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Consent Agenda #6


Human Resources Director Lewis Patterson


Approval of Chairman Brown's recommendation to declare Friday, December 26, 2014 as an additional paid holiday for Fayette County's 


employees.


Christmas Eve, Wednesday, December 24th and Christmas Day, Thursday, December 25th are paid holidays for County employees.  


 


Recognizing that Friday, December 26th will not be a productive day for the County, Chairman Brown recommends approving Friday as 


an additional holiday for County employees as a gesture of seasonal goodwill by the Board of Commissioners. 


Approval of Chairman Brown's recommendation to declare Friday, December 26, 2014 as an additional paid holiday for Fayette County's 


employees.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Staff and Santa support this request.


Thursday, December 11, 2014 Consent








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Public Hearing #5


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina


Public Hearing on proposed Ordinance 2014-19, amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, 


regarding Greenhouses in Section 110-3. Definitions, Section 110-79. Accessory Structures And Uses, Section 110-125. A-R 


Agricultural-Residential District, and Section 110-169 Conditional Use Approval.     


In March of 2014 the Board of Commissioners gave Staff and the Planning Commission permission to draft amendments to the Zoning 


Ordinance concerning greenhouses (hoop houses).  


 


The amendments address greenhouses (permanent and temporary), establish setbacks, building height and size limitations for 


temporary greenhouses per lot size in Residential zoning and A-R.  In addition, requires a Temporary Greenhouse Permit for zoning 


compliance. 


 


Staff and Planning Commission recommend approval of the proposed amendments: 


 


Bob Simmons made a motion to recommend approval of the amendments to the Zoning Ordinance with an added recommendation that 


the Board of Commissioners establish a fee schedule for a Temporary Greenhouse Permit. Brian Haren seconded the motion.  


The motion passed 3-1.  Jim Graw said he voted in opposition to the motion because the recommendation for a fee schedule was 


included in the motion.  He said he had no problem with the amendments as they were presented but would have preferred a separate 


motion be made for the recommendation of a fee schedule.  Doug Powell was absent.


Approval of Ordinance 2014-19 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, regarding 


Greenhouses in Section 110-3. Definitions, Section 110-79. Accessory Structures And Uses, Section 110-125. A-R Agricultural-


Residential District, And Section 110-169 Conditional Use Approval.     


Not Applicable.


Yes


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, December 11, 2014 Public Hearing





























































































































		Planning and Zoning- Greenhou...ments Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Greenhouse Zoning Ordinance Amendments Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Public Hearing #3


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Public Hearing on Petition No. 1238-14, Sohel Dhanani, Owner, request to rezone 34.277 acres from A-R to R-40 to develop a Single-


Family Residential Subdivision consisting of 19 lots, with said property being located in Land Lots 222 and 227 of the 13th District and 


fronting on Westbridge Road.  The Applicant has requested to withdraw Petition 1238-14.


The Applicant has requested to withdraw Petition 1238-14. 


 


Staff recommends approval of the request to withdraw the rezoning petition. 


 


The Planning Commission recommends approval of the request to withdraw the rezoning petition.  Chairman Gilbert made a motion to 


recommend acceptance of the request to withdraw the rezoning petition.  Jim Graw seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4-0.  Doug 


Powell was absent. 


 


Approval of the applicant's request to withdraw Rezoning Petition 1238-14.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, December 11, 2014 Public Hearing





















		Planning and Zoning- Rezoning 1238-14 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Rezoning 1238-14 Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Public Hearing #4


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Public Hearing on Petition No. 1240-14, Davis, LLC., Owner, and Rick Halbert, Agent, request to rezone 63.89 acres from A-R and R-40 


to A-R to develop Single-Family Residential, with said property being located in Land Lots 5 & 6 of the 7th District and fronting on Davis 


Road.


Applicant proposes to develop Single-Family Residential on 63.89 acres. 


 


Staff recommends approval of rezoning Petition 1240-14 with one (1) Condition. 


 


The Planning Commission recommends approval of rezoning Petition 1240-14 with one (1) Condition, namely: 


 


"The owner/developer shall provide, at no cost to Fayette County, a quit-claim deed for 40 feet of right-of-way as measured from the 


centerline of Davis Road prior to the approval of the Minor Subdivision Plat and said dedication area shall be shown on the Minor  


Subdivision Plat."  


 


 


Chairman Gilbert made a motion to approve the petition with one (1) condition. Jim Graw seconded the motion. The motion passed 4-0. 


Doug Powell was absent.


Approval of Petition No. 1240-14, Davis, LLC., Owner, and Rick Halbert, Agent, request to rezone 63.89 acres from A-R and R-40 to A-R 


to develop Single-Family Residential, with said property being located in Land Lots 5 & 6 of the 7th District and fronting on Davis Road, 


with one (1) condition.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, December 11, 2014 Public Hearing







ONE RECOMMENDED CONDITION


1. The owner / developer shall provide, at no cost to Fayette


County, a quit-claim deed for 40 feet of right-of-way as


measured from the centerline of Davis Road prior to the


approval of the Minor Subdivision Plat and said dedication area


shall be shown on the Minor Subdivision Plat. (This condition is


to ensure the provision of adequate right-of-way for future road


improvements.)




















































































COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Consent Agenda #11


Public Works County Engineer Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into an agreement with the Fayette County Board of Education for the stockpiling and use of 


structural fill.  


The Fayette County Board of Education anticipates having a surplus of 8,000 to 11,000 cubic yards of good structural fill generated 


through construction of a detention pond for their new Bus Yard.  Fayette County Public Works is in need of this material and we've 


developed the referenced agreement that allows Public Works use of the material in exchange for assistance with the grading work.   


 


Doing so reduces construction costs to the Board of Education and provides Public Works with a significant source of fill material at a 


central location.   


 


Public Works has reviewed and supports the agreement.   


 


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into an agreement with the Fayette County Board of Education for the stockpiling and use of 


structural fill. 


No funding is required for this item except the indirect costs associated with labor, equipment and fuel to perform the grading work.  


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, December 11, 2014 Consent







 


STATE OF GEORGIA  
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


AGREEMENT FOR GRADING ACTIVITIES AT BUS BARN 
 


 AN AGREEMENT entered into this _______ day of ____________ 2014, by and between 


FAYETTE COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, acting by and through its Board of 


Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as the “County”, and the Fayette County BOARD OF 


EDUCATION, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, acting by and through its Board of 


Education, hereinafter referred to as the BOE, to provide for certain grading activities at the BOE’s Bus 


Yard located on Goza Road. 


WITNESSETH: 


 WHEREAS, the BOE desires to complete site grading work at the Bus Yard at the lowest 


practical cost; and  


 WHEREAS, the grading work will generate between 8,000 to 11,000 cubic yards of suitable 


“cut” material; and 


WHEREAS, the County is in need of suitable material for road and other Public Works project; 


and  


WHEREAS, it is desirable for the County and BOE to coordinate their efforts and resources when 


doing so benefits Fayette County taxpayers;   


 NOW, THEREFORE, in and for the consideration of the premises and conditions as hereinafter 


provided, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties do hereby agree as 


follows: 


1. 


GENERAL 


 The County and the BOE hereby agree to coordinate their efforts, as hereinafter provided, in the 


completion of grading work required for detention pond construction and the subsequent stockpiling and 


removal of soil.  The grading work will expand an existing detention pond.  The proposed cut is 


approximately 50 feet wide by 550 feet long and 10 feet deep.   







 


 


2. 


COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES 


 The County agrees to provide the labor and equipment, which it has available, to complete the 


rough grading of the detention pond.  Soil cut during pond construction shall be hauled away by the 


County or stockpiled on-site at a location agreed to by the County and the BOE.  The County shall then 


have access to the soil for future use for a period up to five years from the date of this Agreement.  After 


which, any remaining material shall become the property and responsibility of the BOE. 


 Rough grading shall be provided to within 6 inches of finish grade. 


The County shall provide all hauling associated with soil removal.  The County shall also be 


responsible for providing temporary and permanent stabilization around the stockpile of material.   


 


3. 


BOE RESPONSIBILITIES 


 The BOE shall be responsible for all aspects of pond construction (e.g., engineering, design, 


permitting, surveying, construction staking, erosion control, finish grading, outlet control installation or 


modification, etc.) with the exception of rough grading.  The BOE shall also provide reasonable access to 


the pond area and stabilize the work area.    


4. 


INDEMNIFICATION 


 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the BOE agrees to hereby and does defend, hold harmless 


and indemnify the County and its officers, directors, employees, agents and representatives from and 


against any and all claims, damages, demands, actions, judgments, losses, costs, penalties, liabilities, 


assessments and expenses including, but not limited to attorney’s fees, incurred or suffered by the County 


that arise out of, or result from, the performance of the Work, which are not incurred or suffered due to 


the negligence of the County. 







 


5. 


SECURING WORK SITE 


 The BOE agrees to assist the County where possible to secure the work site and prevent the 


tampering, vandalism or theft of equipment, tools or materials left at the site by the County, its agents or 


employees, at the close of each working day. The County agrees to provide appropriate traffic control for 


hauls trucks entering and leaving the property.   


6. 


RIGHTS OF THE PROPERTY 


 The BOE warrants that it owns or has rights to improve the Bus Yard property and further 


warrants that said work will not violate any restrictions, covenants, local or state law. 


7. 


STARTING AND COMPLETION DATES 


 The County agrees to begin work within 30 days of contract execution and receiving a Notice to 


Proceed from the BOE.  The work shall be completed in a timely manner subject to inclement weather, 


existing obligations, and circumstances beyond control of the County, in which event the County shall 


commence or complete the project as soon as it may practicably do so. 


 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, parties have hereunto set their hands and affixed their seals the day 


and year as first above written. 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


   By:  ________________________ 


           Steve Brown, Chairman 


(SEAL) 


Attest: 


 


________________________ 


County Clerk 







 


FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF 


EDUCATIO 


 


   By: _______________________  


          Marion Key, Chair 


(SEAL) 


Attest: 


________________________ 


BOE Clerk 





		Public Works- BOE Agreement Agenda Request File

		Public Works- BOE Agreement Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Consent Agenda #9


Purchasing/Bldg & Grounds Maint Ted Burgess / Carlos Christian


Approval of staff's recommendation to award a contract to New South Construction Company, Inc., to serve as General Contractor for the 


old jail's renovation (RFP #915), in the amount of $159,540.00 for General Conditions, and to authorize staff to negotiate remaining costs 


with the General Contractor to arrive at the total Guaranteed Maximum Price.


The old Fayette County Jail was built in 1985.  While a new jail was built in 2002, the old jail is needed due to an increased inmate 


population.  It has been unused for 14 years.  Repairs and renovations must be done before it can be brought back on-line.  This includes 


plumbing and sanitary systems, security locks, heating and air conditioning systems, a roof, and windows.  The county contracted with 


Gleeds to serve as project manager, and K.A. Oldham Design, Inc. for design and contract management. 


 


Request for Proposals (RFP) #915 was issued to procure a General Contractor for the project.  Proposals were submitted that offered 


prices for General Conditions (project personnel, site setup, and logistics) and their percent markup.  The process, evaluations, and 


recommendation are discussed in the attached documents.  While five proposals were received, one was disqualified because it did not 


provide the required bid bonds. 


 


Upon approval of the recommendation for General Contractor, staff and Gleeds will negotiate with the successful company to obtain the 


final Guaranteed Maximum Price, which will include the work to by done by sub-contractors.


Approval of staff's recommendation to award a contract to New South Construction Company, Inc., to serve as General Contractor for old 


jail renovation (RFP #915), in the amount of $159,540 for General Conditions, and to authorize staff to negotiate remaining costs with the 


General Contractor to arrive at the total Guaranteed Maximum Price.


Funds, available from a previous bond issue, are budgeted in Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 5326A.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentThursday, December 11, 2014







To:   
 
From:   
 
Date:   
 
Subject: 
 
The Old Ja
functiona
managem
 
The Gene


a. R
b. R
c. R
d. R


 
It will not 
specialize
 
Funds for 
manner.  
complete
(called the
 


1. C
(c
m
ev
 


2.  U
G
w


 
This meth
General C


Steve 


Ted L. 


Decem


RFP #9


ail, which has
l, safe, and se


ment consultin


ral Contracto
enovation of 
eplacement o
efurbishment
epairs to the 


include the n
s in the highl


the renovati
Gleeds offere
d within the t
e Guaranteed


ompanies res
consisting of c
markup.  The c
valuation and


Upon approva
uaranteed M


will include wo


hod allowed u
Contractor to 


Rapson 


Burgess 


mber 11, 2014


915: General 


s been unoccu
ecure to bring
ng firm Gleed


or to be hired 
plumbing an
of security loc
t of the HVAC
roof and win


new security 
y technical w


on project ar
ed an approa
time constrai
d Maximum P


sponding to a
charges for th
county recom
d interview pr


al of the Gene
Maximum Price
ork to be don


us to work sim
be hired in ti


4 


Contractor fo


upied for the 
g on‐line once
s to accompl


for the proje
d sanitary sys
cks 
C systems 
ndows 


control syste
work. 


e available fr
ch to securing
nt.  Using thi
Price) is devel


a Request for 
heir project p
mmends a firm
rocess, to ser


eral Contracto
e, in line with
e by the sub‐


multaneously 
me to partne


or Old Jail Ren


past 14 years
e again.  The 
ish this proje


ect will perfor
stems 


m, as this wil


om a previou
g a General C
s method, a f
oped in two p


Proposals (RF
ersonnel, site
m to the Board
rve as Genera


or by the Boa
h the required
‐contractors.


on the procu
er with the co


novation 


s, is being ren
county is wo
ct. 


rm work that 


l be done by 


us bond issue,
Contractor tha
final not‐to‐ex
phases: 


FP) submit pr
e setup, and l
d of Commiss
al Contractor.


ard, county st
d scope of wo


urement proc
ounty on the f


novated so th
rking with the


includes: 


a separate co


, and must be
at would ena
xceed price fo


rices for Gene
logistics), and
sioners, chose
 


taff and Gleed
ork and availa


cess and the d
final design, a


hat it will be 
e constructio


ompany that 


e used in a tim
ble the work 
or constructio


eral Condition
d their percen
en through th


ds will negotia
able funds.  T


design.  It allo
and on fine‐tu


on 


mely 
to be 
on 


ns 
nt 
he 


ate a 
his 


ows a 
uning 







details of the Scope of Work.  It also provides additional transparency by giving the county access to 
competitive prices that the General Contractor obtains from sub‐contractors. 
  
Working with Gleeds, the Purchasing Department issued RFP #915 to hire a General Contractor for the 
renovation.  Notices were direct‐mailed to 19 contractors.  Another 1,579 were contacted through the 
web‐based Georgia Procurement Registry.  In addition, invitations were extended via the Fayette News, 
the county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace (www.glga.org), and Channel 23. 
 
Five companies submitted proposals.  They were: 


1. Cooper & Company General Contractors, Inc. 
2. Diversified Construction of Georgia, Inc. 
3. Greenhart Construction, Inc. 
4. New South Construction Company, Inc. 
5. RGI Commercial, a Division of Remediation Group, Inc. 


 
One company (RGI Commerical) did not provide the require bid bond, and was therefore disqualified.  
The Evaluation Committee scored the remaining four proposals, with scores based 80% on technical 
merit and 20% on proposed prices for General Conditions and percent markup (please see Gleeds’ write‐
up for details). 
 
The two best‐scoring companies were Cooper & Company and New South Construction Company.  Both 
were invited to interviews.  Based on the combined outcome of evaluations, and proposed prices, the 
Evaluation Committee recommends New South Construction Company, Inc., to enter into final not‐to‐
exceed price negotiations.  I support their recommendation. 
 
Funds are budgeted in CIP account 5326A. 







 


FAYETTE COUNTY OLD JAIL 
RENOVATION – RECOMMENDATION FOR 
APPOINTMENT OF GENERAL 
CONTRACTOR 
November 20, 2014 


Prepared by: 
Gleeds 
Four Concourse Parkway, Suite 215, Atlanta, GA 30328 
t: 770.395.1500  www.gleeds.com  







 
FAYETTE COUNTY OLD JAIL RENOVATION – RECOMMENDATION 
FOR APPOINTMENT OF GENERAL CONTRACTOR 


 
 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
1.0 Executive Summary 


2.0 Project Description 


3.0 Procurement Process 


4.0 Recommendation and Next Steps 


5.0 Project Budget 


Appendix 1 – Fayette County Jail GC Analysis Summary 


Appendix 2 – Evaluation Scoring Presentations 


  







 
FAYETTE COUNTY OLD JAIL RENOVATION – RECOMMENDATION 
FOR APPOINTMENT OF GENERAL CONTRACTOR 


1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
A procurement process, facilitated by Fayette County Purchasing Department, has been followed in order to select a 


General Contracting Company capable of carrying out the renovation work in the Fayette County Old Jail. Companies 


were invited to submit their proposals for the work along with their assessed cost for general conditions and their fee %. 


These proposals were assessed and a short list of Contractors were invited to an interview and presentation. 


 


The Fayette County Old Jail Project Team is seeking approval to appoint New South Construction as the preferred 


General Contractor for the project. This will enable the team to start negotiating a Guaranteed Maximum Price with New 


South Construction in line with the project scope and budget. 


 


Once a GMP has been agreed, the Project Team will seek approval from the Board of Commissioners to proceed with 


the project. It is expected that approval will be sought at the January 2015 BOC meeting with a view to start construction 


work by the end of the month. 


 
2.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The old Fayette County jail is a 19,715 sqft facility with 7 housing units holding a total of 75 two man cells, along with an 


internal exercise yard and central control tower. The facility has been unoccupied for the last 14 years since the 


completion of the new jail. 


 


The object of this project is to renovate the old jail back to operational standards in order to provide additional inmate 


capacity to assist in the greater classification of prisoners. The scope of work includes upgrade work to the plumbing 


and sanitary systems, replacement security locks to cells, refurbishment of the HVAC systems, repairs to roof and 


windows, and new security control systems including a link to the existing central control in the current jail. The security 


system work will be carried out by security specialists and will not form part of the General Contractors scope of work.  


  







 
FAYETTE COUNTY OLD JAIL RENOVATION – RECOMMENDATION 
FOR APPOINTMENT OF GENERAL CONTRACTOR 


3.0 PROCUREMENT PROCESS 
The procurement process that the project team has been following for the renovation of the old Fayette County Jail has 


been to seek qualified General Contractors through a Request for Proposals (RFP) process. Contractors are invited to 


submit their proposal and methodology for carrying out the work along with their costs for the General Conditions 


(project personal, site set up and logistic costs) and the level of their % fee that will charged on the cost of work.  


 


The received responses are assessed / scored, from which a short list of General Contractors are invited to an interview 


/ presentation. A preferred General Contractor is then selected to negotiate a Guaranteed Maximum Price for the scope 


of work. 


 


Below is the timeline that has been followed for this procurement process: 


Activity Date 


RFP issued & posted on Fayette County Purchasing Website September 24th, 2014 


Pre-proposal conference October 16th, 2014 


RFP submission date October 28th, 2014 


RFPs scored by assessment panel October 29th, 2014 


Shortlisted Contractors invited to interview November 5th, 2014 


Interview & Assessment November 12th, 2014 


 


The interested General Contractors were invited to a pre-proposal conference at the old jail where information on the 


project and the extent of the scope of work was outlined. Contractors were given the opportunity to ask questions and a 


tour was made of the facility. 


 


The General Contractors were asked to provide in their proposal information detailing any relevant prior experience, 


their project approach & execution plan, the proposed project team and schedule, along with their proposed costs for 


the General Conditions for running the project and their % fee.  


 


There were 5 submitted responses to the RFP: 


Cooper & Co. General Contractors 


Diversified Construction of Georgia 


Greenhart Construction Inc. 


New South Construction Company Inc. 


RGI Commercial, A Division of Remediation Group 


 


One of the Contractors was disqualified (RGI Commercial) as they did not include a bid bond, which was required as 


part of the RFP submission. 


 







 
FAYETTE COUNTY OLD JAIL RENOVATION – RECOMMENDATION 
FOR APPOINTMENT OF GENERAL CONTRACTOR 


The remaining four proposals were reviewed by a panel drawn from the Project Team. The proposals were assessed 


and scored for Technical Merit and Cost, with Technical making up 80% of the score and Cost making up 20% of the 


score. The assessment panel was made up of the following members: 


Carlos Christian  Fayette County Director of Buildings and Grounds 


Capt. Eric Henkel Fayette County Sheriff’s Department  


Kip Oldham  Architect, KA Oldham Design, Inc. 


Tim Symonds  Project Manager, Gleeds   


 


The results of the assessment are summarized below: 


PROPOSAL #P915 OLD JAIL RENOVATION PROJECT 
EVALUATION SCORING SHEET 


Summary       


 


MAX 


POINTS 
COOPER & CO. DIVERSIFIED 


CONSTRUCTION 
GREENHEART 


CONSTRUCTION 
NEW SOUTH 


CONSTRUCTION 


SELECTION PROCESS:      


1 


PROJECT EXECUTION 


PLAN 40 22.0 14.0 21.0 38.8 


2 


COMPANY HISTORY & 


EXPERIENCE 20 16.5 3.8 1.0 18.0 


3 PROJECT TEAM 20 10.0 2.8 9.0 19.0 


4 


SUBMITTED PROPOSAL 


PRESENTATION 15 12.5 1.5 3.8 14.5 


5 


IMPLEMENTATION 


SCHEDULE 5 5.0 3.3 0.0 3.8 


 Total Technical Score  66.0 25.4 34.8 94.1 


        


 Price   $133,561 $124,797 $472,440 $159,540 
        


 Technical Merit 80% 52.8 20.2 27.8 75.2 
 Price  20% 18.7 20.0 5.3 15.6 
    71.5 40.2 33.1 90.8 


 


After scoring the technical assessment and costs, it was clear that there were two companies (Cooper & Co. and New 


South Construction) whose scores stood out from the others. It was decided that these two companies should be invited 


to an interview / presentation. 


 







 
FAYETTE COUNTY OLD JAIL RENOVATION – RECOMMENDATION 
FOR APPOINTMENT OF GENERAL CONTRACTOR 


The interviews were held on Wednesday, November 12th, at Fayette County Administration Offices. Each Contractor 


had been given a set agenda for their presentation which covered previous relevant project experience, the proposed 


project team, their approach to the project, and value engineering.  


 


The presentations were assessed and scored immediately afterwards by the following panel members: 


Carlos Christian  Fayette County Director of Buildings and Grounds 


Major Michelle Walker Fayette County Sheriff’s Department 


Capt. Eric Henkel Fayette County Sheriff’s Department  


Kip Oldham  Architect, KA Oldham Design, Inc. 


Tim Symonds  Project Manager, Gleeds 


 


After the assessment and scoring of the presentations, New South Construction had the highest score, and it was 


agreed that they were the best Contractor to carry out the renovation work in the old Fayette County Jail. The summary 


score sheet for the presentations is also included the appendices. 


  







 
FAYETTE COUNTY OLD JAIL RENOVATION – RECOMMENDATION 
FOR APPOINTMENT OF GENERAL CONTRACTOR 


4.0 RECOMMENDATION AND NEXT STEPS 
The project team recommends that New South Construction are chosen as the preferred Contractor to carry out the 


work at the old jail and that a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) is negotiated with them. This will be a not to exceed 


price based on the design and agreed scope of work that is currently being produced by the Project Team. 


 


Once the GMP has been reached and the overall project cost has been agreed, the Project Team will seek approval 


from the Fayette County Board of Commissioners to proceed with the project. The Project Team is targeting the first 


BOC meeting in January to seek this approval with a view to starting the project by the end of January 2015. The project 


completion date is targeted for the end of July 2015. 


  







 
FAYETTE COUNTY OLD JAIL RENOVATION – RECOMMENDATION 
FOR APPOINTMENT OF GENERAL CONTRACTOR 


5.0 PROJECT BUDGET 
The approved budget for the project has been set at $1,861,500. 


 


Below is the latest cost estimate for the project. 


Div. 
No. 


Description 
Base 


Construction 
Cost 


05 Metals 5,250 


06 Wood, Plastics, and Composites 986 


07 Thermal and Moisture Protection 42,758 


08 Openings, doors and windows 231,146 


09 Finishes - floor, wall, ceiling 189,267 


10 Specialties / accessories / signage 9,419 


12 Furnishings 81,000 


21 Fire Suppression 15,000 


22 Plumbing and sanitary installations / repairs 243,791 


23 Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning 119,000 


26 Electrical distribution & Lighting 204,417 


28 Electronic Safety, Security and controls 78,930 


  Measured Work   1,220,963 


● General Conditions - New South's GC's 151,934  


● Performance & Payment Bond included 


● General Contractor's Fee 5.00% 68,600  


  Construction Cost   1,441,497 


● Construction Contingency (Change Orders) 5.00% 72,100  


  Total Construction Cost (Rounded)   1,513,600 


  Security Installation   


● SWC quote 99,925 


  Project Fees   


●  Architectural & Design Services 121,100 


●  Project & Cost Management 95,000 


●  Miscellaneous fees & permits 15,000 


  Total Estimated Project Cost   1,844,625 


  







 
FAYETTE COUNTY OLD JAIL RENOVATION – RECOMMENDATION 
FOR APPOINTMENT OF GENERAL CONTRACTOR 


APPENDIX 1 – FAYETTE COUNTY JAIL GC ANALYSIS SUMMARY 


General Conditions Cooper & Co Diversified Greenhart New South 


Site supervision & management $60,600.00 $50,148.50 $270,622.85 $97,228.00 


Site Office $5,512.00 $18,476.00 $24,267.97 $15,435.00 


Safety & Security $2,300.00 $1,500.00 $6,790.00 $1,790.00 


Miscellaneous $28,010.00 $6,250.00 $20,345.00 $22,200.00 


General Conditions Cost $96,422.00 $76,374.50 $322,025.82 $136,653.00 


Performance & payment bond $9,588.00 $25,000.00 $17,000.00 $7,190.00 


Liability Insurance & Workers Comp $11,376.00 $15,000.00 $2,452.00 $7,000.00 


Unemployment & FICA $11,202.00 $0.00 $46,086.40 $0.00 


Builder's Risk Insurance $1,398.00 See notes 
below 


$50,000.00 $1,100.00 


Sub-Total $129,986.00 $116,374.50 $437,564.22 $151,943.00 


Construction managers Fee % 2.75% 5.00% 8.00% 5.00% 


Total $133,560.62 $122,193.23 $472,569.36 $159,540.15 


GC costs based on 1 month $31,681.00 $30,913.50 $162,772.03 $61,652.00 


  







 
FAYETTE COUNTY OLD JAIL RENOVATION – RECOMMENDATION 
FOR APPOINTMENT OF GENERAL CONTRACTOR 


APPENDIX 2 – EVALUATION SCORING PRESENTATIONS 


CRITERIA COOPER & CO. NEW SOUTH 


PROJECT TEAM TOTAL TOTAL 


OVERALL QUALITY & 


EXPERIENCE 21 25 


EXPERIENCE OF PROJECT 


LEADER 22 24 


EXPERIENCE OF MAIN 


SUPERINTENDENT 21 25 


PRIOR RELEVANT EXPERIENCE 22 24 


APPROACH TO THE PROJECT   


SCHEDULE LOGIC 


SEQUENCING OF ACTIVITIES 18 23 


MAINTAINING OPERATIONS 20 24 


LOGISTICS & PHASING 18 25 
APPROACH TO VALUE 
ENGINEERING 18 23 


COHESIVENESS OF TEAM: 24 23 


PRESENTATION CONTENT: 21 25 
OVERALL PRESENTATION 
IMPRESSION: 22 24 
OVERALL LIKEABILITY OF 
TEAM: 22 25 


TOTALS: 249 290 


 





		Purchasing- Old Jail General Contractor Agenda Request File

		Purchasing- Old Jail General Contractor Backup

		Purchasing- Old Jail General Contractor Backup

		Purchasing- Old Jail General Contractor Backup

		Gleeds - Old Jail General Contrator Backup



		Purchasing -  Old Jail Gen Contractor - Gleeds












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Consent Agenda #10


Road Department Director Andy Adams


Approval of two Intergovernmental Agreements with Clayton County to perform maintenance and repairs on the McDonough Road bridge 


and Helmer Road bridge, both being at the Fayette/Clayton County line, at an aggregate cost of $173,558.55, with $11,308.55 utilized 


from contingency funds, and for all project funds to be moved into the Road Department's Maintenance and Operations budget.


The Georgia Department of Transportation periodically inspects bridges and provides a summary of needed repairs to the respective 


counties.  The bridge on McDonough Road over the Flint River lies on the boarder between Fayette and Clayton County.  Likewise, the 


bridge on Helmer Road over Camp Creek lies on the boarder between Fayette and Clayton County.  The responsibility of performing 


maintenance and repairs on these two bridges is shared equally between the two counties. An Intergovernmental Agreement has been 


prepared for each bridge spelling out the specific maintenance and repairs to be performed and the resulting cost. The result of Clayton 


County's competitive bids for the work is shown below.    


 


As described in the Intergovernmental Agreements: "Fayette County shall reimburse Clayton County for 50% of the total cost of the work 


performed." This will result in a cost to Fayette County as follows: 


 


McDonough Road bridge Intergovernmental Agreement (Exhibit A) - Total cost $306,467.10;  Fayette County's share is $153,233.55 


Helmer Road bridge Intergovernmental Agreement (Exhibit B) - Total Cost $40,650.00; Fayette County's share is $20,325.00 


Grand total cost to Fayette County (Exhibit C): $173,558.55


Approval of two Intergovernmental Agreements with Clayton County to perform maintenance and repairs on the McDonough Road bridge 


and Helmer Road bridge, both being at the Fayette/Clayton County line, at an aggregate cost of $173,558.55, with $11,308.55 utilized 


from contingency funds, and for all project funds to be moved into the Road Department's Maintenance and Operations budget.


Funding will be from a combination of sources: CIP Project 2220A $8000; CIP Project 2220C $8000; CIP Project 4220A $95,000; CIP 


Project 4220B $26,250; FY2015 Road Dept. M&O budget $25,000; and $11,308.55 from contingency.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


This request demonstrates the cooperative work of both Fayette County and Clayton County for the purpose of repairing infrastructure for 


the ongoing safety and travel of all.


ConsentThursday, December 11, 2014







:~--' 


INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
REGARDING MCDONOUGH ROAD BRIDGE REPAIR,
 


MAINTENANCE AND EROSION CONTROL
 


This Agreement is made by and between FAYETTE COUNTY, a political subdivision of 
the State of Georgia and Clayton County, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, each of 
whom has been duly authorized to enter into this Agreement to provide for certain bridge work 
on McDonough Road Bridge over Flint River. 


WHEREAS, Clayton County and Fayette County desire to promote an adequate and safe 
means of transportation by having certain repairs and maintenance activities made to the bridge 
on McDonough Road over the Flint River, these activities being more fully described in 
Attachment A; and 


WHEREAS, Clayton County and Fayette County recognize that the McDonough Road 
Bridge over the Flint River is insufficient to carry school buses yet provides more efficient and 
convenient access between Fayette Clayton and Henry County schools for extracurricular events; 
and 


WHEREAS, Clayton County and Fayette County desire to coordinate their efforts and 
work together in performing the maintenance work described above, pursuant to their respective 
Resolutions; and 


NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and 
undertakings set forth herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Clayton County and Fayette County agree as 
follows: 


1. 


Clayton County and Fayette County hereby agree to coordinate their efforts, as 
hereinafter provided, in the repair of McDonough Road bridge that are listed on the attachment 
to this Agreement known as Attachment A. Said as Attachment A is hereby adopted in this 
Agreement by this reference hereto. 


2. 


COUNTIES'RESPONSIBILITIES 


Clayton County agrees to provide the bid specifications and bid letting for the bridge 
repairs which have been identified in the as Attachment A. Any additional County 
Responsibilities not listed in this paragraph may be contained in the Special Stipulations 
attachment. 


3. 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Exhibit A







Fayette County shall reimburse Clayton County for 50% of the total cost of the work 
performed and shall pay Clayton County for the work within 30 days of invoicing. Fayette 
County agrees to handle any prior local resident work notification within the Fayette County 
work area. 


4. 


INDEMNIFICATION 


To the fullest extent permitted by law, each respective County agrees to and hereby does 
defend, hold harmless, and indemnify the other County and its officers, directors, employees, 
agents, and representatives from and against any and all claims, damages, demands, actions, 
judgments, losses, costs, penalties, liabilities, assessments and expenses including, but not 
limited to, attorney's fees, incurred or suffered by such County that arise out of, or result from, 
the performance of the Work. 


5. 


RIGHTS TO THE PROPERTY 


Fayette County warrants that it owns or has rights to repair the aforementioned road listed 
on the Special Stipulations attachment and further warrants that said work will not violate any 
restrictions, covenants, local or state law. 


6. 


ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 


Any additional terms and conditions which may exist between parties may be found on 
the Special Stipulations attachment. To the extent that there may exist a conflict between the 
terms and conditions in this Agreement and the terms and conditions in the Special Stipulations 
attachment, the parties agree that any terms and conditions which may appear in the Special 
Stipulations attachment supersede any terms and conditions within this Agreement. 







"<:PALV'. ,2014 


Je~ .l:\\ll1ller, L'lratl't'nan 
CLA~T~NCOUNTY 


IN WITNESS THEREFORE, parties have hereunto set their hands and affixed their seals 
the day and year as first above written. 


Executed on Behalfof 
CLAY1;'Q~COUNTY 
This .--ltX- day of 


COMMISSIONER BOARD OF COMMISSIONER'S 


SiWIed, sealed and delivered this 
~dayofJJI~ ,2014 


ATTEST: 
CLERK OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONER'S 







IN WITNESS THEREFORE, parties have hereunto set their hands and affixed their seals 
the day and year as first above written. 


Executed on Behalf of 
FAYETTE COUNTY 
This day of 
_______, 2014 


Steve Brown, Chairman 
FAYETTE COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER BOARD OF COMMISSIONER'S 


Signed, sealed and delivered this 
__ day of ,2014 


Notary Public (SEAL) 


ATTEST: 
CLERK OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONER'S 


Floyd Jones, Clerk 







Attachment A 


McDonough Road over Flint River - Structure ID 113-0025-0 


a)	 Repair pile encasements at Bents #5, and #7 through #10 in accordance with GDOT 
Standard Specification Section 547 and Bridge Maintenance Activity 830.03. The 
location of undermining is listed below: 


•	 Bent #5 - Piles #1 - #2 


•	 Bent #7 - Piles #1 - #4 


•	 Bent #8 - Piles #1 and #3 


•	 Bent #9 - Piles #1, #3, and #4 


•	 Bent #10 - Piles #1 - #4 


b)	 Please refer to Activity 830.07 -H-Pile Swaybracing in the Bridge Repair Manual for 
details of installation of swaybracing. H-Pile Swaybracing to be installed at Bents # 5 
#10. Paint all steel piling in accordance with GDOT Standard Specification Section 535, 
using a System VII paint system, paint color to match existing piles. 


c)	 Repair spalls in accordance with GDOT Special Provision 521 and Bridge Maintenance 
Activity 830.15, 830.18, 830.19, or 830.22. Score edges of patches at least ~ in. deep, 
clean patch, and remove rust from any exposed reinforcing steel. Patch with GOOT 
approved rapid setting patching material (QPL 27, Type III Material for overhead 
applications) in accordance with manufacturer's specifications. Use epoxy resin adhesive 
as required by patching material specifications. Location of concrete patching is at Bent 
#3, between Beams #2 and #3. There is also minor spalling at Bents #5, #8, and #9. 


d)	 Please refer to Activity 800.01 - Bridge Deck Joint Sealing (Silicone) in the Bridge 
Repair Manual for details of installation of expansion joints at the Bents #1, #3 and #10. 


e)	 Seal all transverse deck cracking on top and bottom of each span and cracking at each 
abutment. Cracks shall be epoxy pressure injected as per Section 528 of Georgia DOT 
Standard Specification and Bridge Maintenance Activity 830.13. 


f)	 Add approximately 135 square yards of rip rap where needed, divided equally between 
both abutments. Please refer to Activity 845.01 - Rip Rap Protection of the Bridge Repair 
Manual for complete details of installation. 


g)	 Remove drift. 


h)	 The removal of over growth vegetation. 







INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
REGARDING HELMER ROAD BRIDGE REPAIR, 


MAINTENANCE AND EROSION CONTROL 
 


 
This Agreement is made by and between FAYETTE COUNTY, a political subdivision of 


the State of Georgia and Clayton County, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, each of 
whom has been duly authorized to enter into this Agreement to provide for certain bridge work 
on Helmer Road Bridge over Camp Creek. 
 


WHEREAS, Clayton County and Fayette County desire to promote an adequate and safe 
means of transportation by having certain repairs and maintenance activities made to the bridge 
on Helmer Road (County Road 499) over Camp Creek, these activities being more fully 
described in Attachment A;  and 
 


WHEREAS, Clayton County and Fayette County recognize that the Helmer Road Bridge 
over Camp Creek is insufficient to carry school buses yet provides more efficient and convenient 
access between Clayton County and Fayette County schools for extracurricular events; and 
 


WHEREAS, Clayton County and Fayette County desire to coordinate their efforts and 
work together in performing the maintenance work described above, pursuant to their respective 
Resolutions; and 
 


NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual interests, promises, covenants, and 
undertakings set forth herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Clayton County and Fayette County agree as 
follows: 
 


1. 
 


Clayton County and Fayette County hereby agree to coordinate their efforts, as 
hereinafter provided, in the repair and rehabilitation of Helmer Road Bridge that are listed on the 
attachment to this Agreement known as Attachment A. Said as Attachment A is hereby adopted 
in this Agreement by this reference hereto. 
 


2. 
 


COUNTIES' RESPONSIBILITIES 
 


Clayton County agrees to provide the bid specifications and bid letting for the bridge 
repairs which have been identified in the as Attachment A. Any additional County 
responsibilities not listed in this paragraph may be contained in the Special Stipulations 
attachment. 
 
  



fjones

Typewritten Text

Exhibit B







3. 
 


Fayette County shall reimburse Clayton County for 50% of the total cost of the work 
performed and shall pay Clayton County for the work within 30 days of invoicing. Fayette 
County agrees to handle any prior local resident work notification within the Fayette County 
work area. 
 


4. 
 


INDEMNIFICATION 
 


To the fullest extent permitted by law, each respective County agrees to and hereby does 
defend, hold harmless, and indemnify the other County and its officers, directors, employees, 
agents, and representatives from and against any and all claims, damages, demands, actions, 
judgments, losses, costs, penalties, liabilities, assessments and expenses including, but not 
limited to, attorney's fees, incurred or suffered by such County that arise out of, or result from, 
the performance of the Work. 
 


5. 
 


RIGHTS TO THE PROPERTY 
 


Fayette County warrants that it owns or has rights to repair the aforementioned bridge 
and approaching roadway listed on the Special Stipulations attachment and further warrants that 
said work will not violate any restrictions, covenants, local or state law. 
 


6. 
 


ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 


Any additional terms and conditions which may exist between parties may be found on 
the Special Stipulations attachment. To the extent that there may exist a conflict between the 
terms and conditions in this Agreement and the terms and conditions in the Special Stipulations 
attachment, the parties agree that any terms and conditions which may appear in the Special 
Stipulations attachment supersede any terms and conditions within this Agreement. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 
IN WITNESS THEREFORE, parties have hereunto set their hands and affixed their seals 


the day and year as first above written. 
 
 
 


Executed on Behalf of 
CLAYTON COUNTY 
This _______ day of       
_________________, 2014        
  
 
____________________________ 
Jeffrey E. Turner, Chairman 
CLAYTON COUNTY  
COMMISSIONER  BOARD OF COMMISSIONER’S 


         
 


Signed, sealed and delivered this  
_____ day of _____________, 2014 
 
_____________________________       
Notary Public   (SEAL) 
 


ATTEST: 
CLERK OF THE BOARD OF 


 COMMISSIONER’S 
 
   
 
 _____________________________ 
        Sandra Davis, Clerk  


      
  


  
  


 
 


 







 


IN WITNESS THEREFORE, parties have hereunto set their hands and affixed their seals 
the day and year as first above written. 


 
 
 


Executed on Behalf of 
FAYETTE COUNTY 
This _______ day of       
_________________, 2014        
  
 
____________________________ 
Steve Brown, Chairman 
FAYETTE COUNTY  
COMMISSIONER  BOARD OF COMMISSIONER’S 


         
 


Signed, sealed and delivered this  
_____ day of _____________, 2014 
 
_____________________________       
Notary Public   (SEAL) 
 


ATTEST: 
CLERK OF THE BOARD OF 


 COMMISSIONER’S 
 
   
 
 _____________________________ 
        Floyd Jones, Clerk  


  







Attachment A 


BRIDGE REPAIRS 


Helmer Road over Camp Creek – Structure ID 063-5015-0 


a) Clean and repaint all bearing areas in accordance with GDOT Standard Specification 
Section 535, using a System VII paint system, paint color to match existing.  Please refer 
to Activity 830.17 - Anchor Bolt Repair in the Bridge Repair Manual for details of 
installation of anchor bolt repair where necessary.  All materials necessary to complete 
anchor bolt repair to be included under pay item number 501-2000, STR STEEL. 


b) Repair an asphalt spall at the east approach roadway.  Approximate size of spall is 6’-0” 
long x 2’-0” wide x 2” deep. Patching mix to be Type 12.5, per GDOT Specifications.  


c) The removal of over growth vegetation. 







Funding Plan For Bridge Repair & Maintenance:


Joint Project ‐ Fayette & Clayton County


Total Fayette's Am't Am't Still
Location Cost Portion Funding Source Available Needed


Project 1 McDonough Rd bridge 306,467.10$   153,233.55$  CIP Project 2220A ‐ Hampton Rd @ Flint River 8,000.00$      
Project 2 Helmer Rd bridge 40,650.00$     20,325.00$     CIP Project 2220C ‐ Redwine Rd @ White 8,000.00$      


CIP Project 4220A ‐ McDonough Rd @ Flint 95,000.00$    
CIP Project 4220B ‐ Maint ‐ Multiple Bridges 26,250.00$    
FY2015 Road Dept M&O Budget 25,000.00$    


347,117.10$   173,558.55$  162,250.00$  11,308.55$ 


Request $11,308.55 from contingency


December 11, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Exhibit C





		Road- Bridge Repairs Agenda Request File

		Road- Bridge Repairs Backup

		Exhibit A- IGA McDonough Road Bridge 12-11-14

		Exhibit B- IGA - Helmer Rd Bridge 12-11-14

		Exhibit C- McDonough  Helmer - Funding 12-11-14












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Consent Agenda #12


Tax Assessors Joel T. Benton


Approval of the disposition of tax refunds, in an aggregate amount of $486.09, as recommended by the Tax Assessor's Office.


When a taxpayer feels that an error has occurred with respect to taxes paid to Fayette County on Real Estate and Personal Property tax 


bills, they have the right to request a Refund under O.C.G.A. 48-5-380. This request is given to the Tax Assessors' Office in order to be 


reviewed in detail and the appropriate recommendation(s) are then forwarded to the Board of Commissioner's for their final approval of 


said requests.


Approval of the disposition of tax refunds, in an aggregate amount of $486.09, as recommended by the Tax Assessor's Office.


The funding required will be for those refund requests where the overpayment of taxes (voluntarily or involuntarily) was a direct result of 


property that had previously been erroneously assessed and taxes have already been collected from the taxpayer(s).


Yes Periodically through the year(s)


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


No


Yes


ConsentThursday, December 11, 2014







Refund Requests BOC 12.11.2014
Taxpayer Year(s) Property Basis for Request Recommendation Reason Amount Per Year


Ikon Office Solutions Inc                                                  


(P2002-2141)


 2012    


(Partial)                           


(Bill # 2012-


51654) 


Leasing


Ricoh USA, Inc. (f.k.a. IKON 


Office Solutions Inc.) is 


requesting a refund for the taxes 


paid on assets that were 


reported in error. These assets 


were sold to GE Capital 


Information Tech Solutions Inc. 


in late 2011.


Approve 


GE Capital Information Tech Solutions Inc. 


reported the acquired assets on their 2012 


PT50P (P1994-0422)and tax bill (2012-


51316) is paid. Appraiser verified the assets 


are the same by matching manufactured and 


configured serial numbers as well as lessee 


name and location of lessee. 


$77.89


Ikon Office Solutions Inc                                                  


(P2002-2142)


2012           


(Partial)             


(Bill #2012-


51655) 


Leasing


Ricoh USA, Inc. (f.k.a. IKON 


Office Solutions Inc.) is 


requesting a refund for the taxes 


paid on assets that were 


reported in error. These assets 


were sold to GE Capital 


Information Tech Solutions Inc. 


in late 2011.


Approve 


GE Capital Information Tech Solutions Inc. 


reported the acquired assets on their 2012 


PT50P (P1994-0421) and tax bill is paid 


(2012-51315). Appraiser verified the assets 


are the same by matching manufactured and 


configured serial numbers as well as lessee 


name and location of lessee. 


$408.20


Walker, Joseph                                                                   


05-2904-004


2011                               


2012                        


2013   


(Partial)               


Residential


Taxpayer came in stating we did 


not have his parcel identified 


correctly for flood plain area and 


appealed his value. The BOE 


set his value at $4400. He is 


requesting a refund for tax years 


2011, 2012 and 2013. Our 


records have been corrected for 


tax year 2014 and going forward.


Deny


Taxpayer has been sent an assessment 


notice each year and did not appeal the 


value. He brought in new flood maps for tax 


year 2014. Our records have been corrected 


for tax year 2014 and forward.


2011 - $342.64


2012 - $131.37


2013 - $131.66


Total Number Requested 3


Total Amount Requested $1,091.76


Total Number Approved 2


Total Amount Recommended for Approval


$486.09





		Tax Assessor- Refund Agenda Request File

		Tax Assessor- Refund Backup





